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AUSTRALIA AND NEW ZEALAND

BANKING GROUP LIMITED -
MUMBAI BRANCH

(Incorporated in Australia with limited liability)

To

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Chief Executive Officer
Australia and New Zealand Banking Group Limited — Mumbai Branch

Report on the Financial Statements

1.

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Australia and New
Zealand Banking Group Limited - Mumbai Branch (‘the Bank’), which comprise
the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2015, the Profit and Loss Account, the Cash
Flow Statement for the year then ended, a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

2.

Management is responsible for preparation of these financial statements
that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance
and cash flows of the Bank in accordance with provisions of the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with
Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and Section 29 of the Banking
Regulation Act, 1949 and circulars and guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank
of India from time to time. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Bank and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities, selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies, making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,
and the design, implementation and maintenance of internal financial controls,
that operate effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

3.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based
on our audit. We have taken into account the applicable provisions of the Act,
the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to
be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
made thereunder. We conducted our audit of the Bank including its branches
in accordance with Standards on Auditing (‘the Standards’) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatements.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the Bank's preparation of the financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether
the Bank has in place an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and the operating effectiveness of such controls. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the management, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

6.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give
the information required by the Banking Regulation Act, 1949 as well as the
Companies Act, 2013, in the manner so required for banking companies and
give a true and fair view in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in India:

(a) inthe case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Bank as at
31March2015;

in the case of the Profit and Loss account, of the profit of the Bank for
the year ended on that date; and

in the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows of the Bank
for the year ended on that date.

(b)
(©

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

7. The Balance Sheet and the Profit and Loss Account have been drawn up in
accordance with the provisions of Section 29 of the Banking Regulation Act,
1949 read with Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

8.  Asrequired Sub section (3) of Section 30 of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949,
we report that:

(a) we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best
of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purpose of our audit
and have found them to be satisfactory;

(b) the transactions of the Bank, which have come to our notice, have been
within the powers of the Bank; and

(c) the Bank has one branch which we have visited during the course of our
audit. Since the key operations of the Bank are automated with the key
applications integrated to the core banking systems, the audit is carried out
centrally as all the necessary records and data required for the purposes
of our audit are available therein.

9.  Further, as required by Section 143(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, we further
report that:

(i) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanation which
to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose
of our audit;

(i) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been
kept by the Bank so far as appears from our examination of those books;

(iii) the financial accounting systems of the Bank are centralised and,
therefore, returns are not necessary to be submitted by the branches;

(iv) the Balance Sheet, the Profit and Loss Account and the Cash Flow
Statement dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of
account;

(v) in our opinion, the Balance Sheet, the Profit and Loss Account and the
Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this report comply with the Accounting
Standards referred in Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, to the extent they are not inconsistent
with the accounting policies prescribed by the Reserve Bank of India.

(vi) the requirements of Section 164(2) of the Act are not applicable
considering the Bank is a branch of Australia and New Zealand Banking
Group Limited, which is incorporated and registered in Australia.

(vii) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to
the explanations given to us:

(a) the Bank does not have any pending litigations which would impact
its financial position.

(b) the Bank has made provision, as required under the applicable law
or accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, wherever
required, on long-term contracts including derivative contracts - Refer
Schedule 5 and 12 to the financial statements.

(c) there were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Bank.

For B S R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No: 116231W/W-100024
Sd/-
Ashwin Suvarna
Mumbai Partner
22 June 2015 Membership No: 109503
BALANCE SHEET
Schedule As at As at
31 March 31 March
2015 2014
(3'000s) (Z'000s)

CAPITAL AND LIABILITIES

Capital 1 11,311,074 11,311,074

Reserves and surplus 2 993,453 428,869

Deposits 3 22,302,151| 21,560,692

Borrowings 4 15,359,602| 14,378,639

Other liabilities and provisions 5 8,609,151 9,103,291

Total Capital and liabilities 58,575,431| 56,782,565

ASSETS

Cash and balances with

Reserve Bank of India 6 3,751,363 2,009,022

Balances with banks and

money at call and short notice 7 4,746,302 9,923,316

Investments 8 18,788,681 15,654,922

Advances 9 22,583,709| 20,472,310

Fixed assets 10 253,667 348,683

Other assets 1 8,451,709 8,374,312

Total Assets 58,575,431| 56,782,565

Contingent liabilities 12 436,757,108 | 448,504,155

Bills for collection - 7,743,509 3,248,722

Significant accounting policies and 17,18

notes to financial statements

The accompanying schedules form
As per our report of even date

For B S R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration

No. 116231W/W-100024

Sd/-

Ashwin Suvarna
Partner

Membership No. 109503

Place: Mumbai
Date: 22 June 2015

an integral part of the Balance Sheet.

For Australia and
New Zealand Banking
Group Limited - Mumbai Branch

Sd/-
Sanjeev Bajaj
Chief Executive Officer

Sd/-
Vinit Kumar Sarawgi
Chief Financial Officer

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
For the For the
year ended | year ended
Schedule| 31 March 31 March
2015 2014
(% '000s) (% '000s)

. INCOME

Interest earned 13 2,844,271 3,070,646

Other income 14 1,232,491 437,994

Total 4,076,762| 3,508,640
Il. EXPENDITURE

Interest expended 15 1,715,627 1,375,332

Operating expenses 16 1,380,228| 1,337,676

Provisions and contingencies 16A 416,323 290,189

Total 3,512,178 3,003,197
lll. PROFIT / (LOSS)

Net Profit for the year 564,584 505,443

Profit / (Loss) brought forward

from previous year - (89,570)

Total 564,584 415,873
IV. APPROPRIATIONS

Transfer to Statutory Reserves 2 141,146 126,361

Transfer to / (from)

Investment Reserve 2 (142) 142

Remittable Surplus retained

in India for Capital to Risk-

weighted Assets ratio (CRAR) 2 423,580 289,370

Balance carried over to

balance sheet 2 -

Total 564,584 415,873
Significant accounting policies and
notes to financial statements 17,18

The accompanying schedules form an integral part of the Profit and Loss

Account.
As per our report of even date

For B S R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration

No. 116231W/W-100024

Sd/-

Ashwin Suvarna
Partner

Membership No. 109503

Place: Mumbai
Date: 22 June 2015

For Australia and
New Zealand Banking
Group Limited - Mumbai Branch

Sd/-
Sanjeev Bajaj
Chief Executive Officer

Sd/-
Vinit Kumar Sarawgi
Chief Financial Officer

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

For the year | For the year
ended 31 ended 31
March 2015 | March 2014
(X '000s) (3'000s)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit / (Loss) Before Taxation 885,208 891,790
Adjustments for:
Depreciation on Bank’s property 118,519 142,960
Provision in respect of non-performing assets
(including general provision on standard
assets and country risk exposure) 94,774 (95,824)
Depreciation / (Appreciation) on
investments 925 (334)
(Profit)/Loss on sale of fixed assets (124) 2,916
Write off of fixed assets - -
Operating profit before working capital changes 1,099,302 941,508
Adjustments for:
Increase in investments (3,134,684)| (5,704,427)
(Increase) / Decrease in advances (2,111,399) 3,389,964
Increase in other assets (1,982)| (4,348,753)
Increase in borrowings 980,963 6,512,780
Increase / (Decrease) in deposits 741,459| (3,531,780)
(Decrease) / Increase in other
liabilities and provisions (588,915)| 4,301,705
(3,015,256)| 1,560,997
Direct taxes paid (396,038)|  (316,630)
Net cash flow from / (used in)
operating activities (A) (3,411,294)| 1,244,367
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of fixed assets (Including Capital WIP) (23,827) (32,856)
Proceeds from the sale of fixed assets 448 -
Net cash flow from / (used in)
investing activities (B) (23,379) (32,856)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from capital infusion - -
Net cash flow from / (used in)
financing activities (C) - -
Net increase in cash and cash
equivalents (A+B+C) (3,434,673)| 1,211,511
Cash and cash equivalents at the
beginning of the year (D) 11,932,338| 10,720,827
Cash and cash equivalents at the end
of the year (E) 8,497,665 11,932,338
Net Increase/(Decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents (E-D) (F) (3,434,673)| 1,211,511
Note: Cash and Cash Equivalent represents
As at As at
Schedule | 31 March | 31 March
2015 2014
Cash and Balance with
Reserve Bank of India 6 3,751,363| 2,009,022
Balance with banks and
Money at call and short notice 7 4,746,302 9,923,316
Total 8,497,665 11,932,338

As per our report of even date

For B S R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration

No. 116231W/W-100024

For Australia and
New Zealand Banking
Group Limited - Mumbai Branch

Sd/- Sd/-
Ashwin Suvarna Sanjeev Bajaj
Partner Chief Executive Officer
Membership No. 109503
Sd/-
Place: Mumbai Vinit Kumar Sarawgi
Date: 22 June 2015 Chief Financial Officer
SCHEDULES ANNEXED TO AND
FORMING PART OF THE BALANCE SHEET
As at As at
31 March 31 March
2015 2014
(3'000s) (% '000s)
1. CAPITAL
Amount of deposit kept with Reserve Bank
of India under Section 11 (2) (b) of
the Banking Regulation Act, 1949 200,000 14,997
Head Office Account
Capital remitted by Head Office
Opening balance 11,311,074 11,311,074
Additions during the year - -
Total 11,311,074| 11,311,074
2. RESERVES AND SURPLUS
Statutory Reserves
Balance, beginning of the year 139,357 12,996
Transfer from Profit and Loss Account 141,146 126,361
Balance, end of the year 280,503 139,357

As at As at
31 March 31 March
2015 2014
(3'000s) ('000s)
b Remittable Surplus retained in India for
Capital to Risk-weighted Assets ratio
(CRAR)
Balance, beginning of the year 289,370 -
Transfer from Profit and Loss Account 423,580 289,370
Balance, end of the year 712,950 289,370
¢ Investment Reserve
Balance, beginning of the year 142 -
Transfer to Profit and Loss Account (142) 142
Balance, end of the year - 142
Total 993,453 428,869
3. DEPOSITS
a |. Demand Deposits
From banks 24,876 12,213
From others 2,496,530 1,345,779
Total Demand Deposits 2,521,406 1,357,992
Il. Savings Bank Deposits
Total Savings Bank Deposits 30 74
lll. Term Deposits
From banks - -
From others 19,780,715| 20,202,626
Total Term Deposits 19,780,715, 20,202,626
Total 22,302,151, 21,560,692
b |. Deposits of branches in India 22,302,151 21,560,692
Il. Deposits of branches outside India - -
Total 22,302,151 21,560,692
4. BORROWINGS
a Borrowings in India from
(i) Reserve Bank of India - 630,000
(i) Other banks 1,030,000 100,000
(i) Other institutions and agencies -| 3,045,507
1,030,000 3,775,507
b Borrowings outside India 14,329,602| 10,603,132
Total 15,359,602 14,378,639
Secured Borrowings included
in a and b above - 3045,507
5. OTHER LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS
Bills payable 14,903 156,193
Inter Office Adjustment ( net ) - -
Interest accrued 476,971 470,434
Contingent provision
against standard assets 241,531 147,172
Others (including provisions) (Refer
Schedule 18 Note 33) 7,875,746| 8,329,492
Total 8,609,151 9,103,291
6. CASH AND BALANCES WITH
RESERVE BANK OF INDIA
Cash in hand (including foreign
currency notes) 424 422
Balance with Reserve
Bank of India in current account 3,750,939 2,008,600
Total 3,751,363 2,009,022
7. BALANCES WITH BANKS AND MONEY
AT CALL AND SHORT NOTICE
I. InIndia
(i) Balances with banks
(a) In current accounts 126,334 100,194
(b) In other deposit accounts 3,550,000 9,120,000
(ii) Money at call and short notice
(a) with banks - -
(b) with other institutions - -
3,676,334 9,220,194
Il. Outside India
(i) In current accounts 1,069,968 703,122
(i) In other deposit accounts - -
(iii) In money at call and short notice - -
1,069,968 703,122
Total 4,746,302) 9,923,316
8. INVESTMENTS
I. Investments in India in
(i) Government securities 18,789,717 15,655,033
(i) Other approved securities - -
(iii) Shares - -
(iv) Debentures and bonds - -
(v) Subsidiaries - -
(vi) Others - -
Less: Diminution in the
value of investments - -
18,789,717| 15,655,033
Il. Investments outside India in
(i) Government securities
(including local authorities) - -
(i) Subsidiaries and/or
Joint venture abroad - -
(iii) Other Investments - -
Gross Investments 18,789,717| 15,655,033
Less: Provision for
depreciation on investments 1,036 1M1
Total 18,788,681 15,654,922
9. ADVANCES
a. |. Bills purchased and discounted 2,077,995 1,567,089
Il.  Cash credits, overdrafts and
loans repayable on demand 18,696,131| 15,106,054
Ill. Term loans 1,809,583 3,799,167
22,583,709, 20,472,310
b. 1. Secured by tangible assets 4,880,257 800,000
Il. Covered by bank /
government guarantees - -
Ill. Unsecured 17,703,452| 19,672,310
22,583,709| 20,472,310
c. I. Advances in India
Priority sector 8,755,738 8,397,879
Public sector 1,863,813 -
Banks - -
Others 11,964,158| 12,074,431
22,583,709, 20,472,310
Il. Advances outside India
Due from banks - -
Due from others - -
Total 22,583,709, 20,472,310
10.FIXED ASSETS
I. Premises - -
Il. Other Fixed Assets
(Including furniture and fixtures)
Balance, beginning of the year 633,775 596,345
Additions during the year 12,871 45,106
Deductions during the year 1,323 7,676
Less: Depreciation to date 419,912 302,392
Net book value of other fixed assets 225,411 331,383
Capital work in progress 28,256 17,300
Total Net Book Value of Fixed Assets 253,667 348,683
11.OTHER ASSETS
Inter Office Adjustment ( net ) - -
Interest accrued 143,108 195,946
Tax paid in advance / tax deducted at
source (net of provision for taxation) 76,225 57,442
Deferred tax asset
(Refer Schedule 18 Note 30) 104,195 47,563
Stationery and stamps - -
Others (Refer Schedule 18 Note 33) 8,128,181 8,073,361
Total 8,451,709 8,374,312
12.CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Claims against the Bank not
acknowledged as debts - -
Liability for partly paid investments in shares - -
Liability on account of outstanding
foreign exchange contracts 186,713,109| 216,526,652
Liability on account of derivative contracts | 232,963,458| 220,465,538
Guarantees given on behalf of constituents
- In India 12,095,924| 9,213,948
- Outside India - -
Acceptances, endorsements
and other obligations 4,825,481 2,138,825
Other items for which the Bank is
contingently liable
- Tax demands 261 4,328
- Purchase of Investments 158,875 154,864
Total 436,757,108 448,504,155

SCHEDULES ANNEXED TO AND FORMING PART OF THE
PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

For the For the
year ended | year ended
31 March 31 March
2015 2014
(3'000s) ('000s)
13.INTEREST EARNED
Interest/discount on advances / bills 1,167,080 1,538,168
Income on investments 1,154,029 1,000,257
Interest on balances with Reserve Bank of
India and other inter-bank funds 520,992 531,365
Others 2,170 856
Total 2,844,271 3,070,646
14.0THER INCOME
Commission, exchange and brokerage 153,092 124,857
Net profit on sale of Investments 105,855 (24,343)
Net profit on revaluation of Investments - -
Net profit / (loss) on sale of
premises and other assets 124 (2,916)
Net profit / (loss) on exchange
transactions (including derivatives) 390,637 (346,450)
Miscellaneous income 582,783 686,846
Total 1,232,491 437,994
15.INTEREST EXPENDED
Interest on deposits 1,535,712 1,253,014
Interest on Reserve Bank of India
and inter-bank borrowings 150,740 62,635
Others 29,175 59,683
Total 1,715,627| 1,375,332
16.OPERATING EXPENSES
Payments to and provisions for employees 736,208 709,796
Rent, taxes and lighting 227,759 174,679
Printing and stationery 3,910 4,880
Advertisement and publicity 2,632 4,047
Depreciation on Bank's property 118,519 142,960
Auditors' fees and expense 2,200 1,580
Legal and professional charges 52,081 74,098
Postage, telegrams, telephones, etc. 6,205 6,974
Repairs and maintenance 4,587 8,576
Insurance 23,172 26,873
Other expenses
(Refer Schedule 18 Note 32) 202,955 183,213
Total 1,380,228) 1,337,676
16A PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENCIES
Specific provisions against advances written
back (net of bad debts written off) - (95,485)
General provision against standard assets 94,358 1,237
Provision towards country risk 416 (1,576)
Diminution in the value of Investments 925 (334)
Provision on account of tax
- Current tax expense 377,256 336,714
- Deferred tax expense/(Income) (56,632) 49,633
Total 416,323 290,189

SCHEDULE 17: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015

1.

4.2

4.3

Background

The accompanying financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2015
comprise of the accounts of the Mumbai Branch of Australia and New Zealand
Banking Group Limited (‘the Bank’) which is incorporated in Australia with
limited liability. The Bank has only one branch in India as on 31 March 2015.

Basis of preparation

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared and presented
under the historical cost convention on accrual basis of accounting, unless
otherwise stated, and in accordance with the Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles (‘GAAP’) in India, statutory requirements prescribed under the
Banking Regulation Act, 1949, circulars and the guidelines issued by Reserve
Bank of India (‘RBI’) from time to time, the Accounting Standards (‘AS’)
(specified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as amended) to the extent applicable)
and practices prevailing within the Banking industry in India.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees rounded off to the
nearest thousand, unless otherwise stated.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with applicable GAAP
requires management to make estimates and assumptions considered in the
reported amount of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities
as at the date of the financial statements and the result of operations during
the reporting period. Management believes that the estimates used in the
preparation of financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Actual results
could differ from those estimates. Any revision to accounting estimates and
assumptions is recognised prospectively in current and future periods.

Significant accounting policies
Revenue recognition

a) Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis, except in case of
interest on Non Performing Assets (NPAs), which is recognised as income

on receipt, in accordance with RBI guidelines.

b) Interest income on discounted instruments is recognised over the tenor
of the instrument on a constant effective yield basis (interest rate implied
by the discounted purchased price).

c) Fees and commission on guarantees, letters of credit and loans are
recognised as and when due once the services are rendered. In case
tenor of guarantee is more than one year, fees for issuance is amortised
on straight-line basis over the period of guarantee except guarantee fees
up to set threshold (1% of total fees and commission income or15,00,000
whichever is lower), which is recognised upfront in the year of issuance
of guarantee.

d) Fees from support services are recognised based on applicable service

contracts and when the service has been rendered.

Fixed Assets and Depreciation
a)

b) Cost includes purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the
asset to its working condition for its intended use. Subsequent expenditure
incurred on assets put to use is capitalised only when it increases the
future benefit / capacity of such asset.

c) Cost of motor vehicles acquired on finance lease is amortised using the
straight-line method over the primary period of lease.

Fixed assets are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation.

d) Assetsindividually costing up to ¥5,000 and mobile instruments are written
off in the month of acquisition.
e) The useful life estimates prescribed in Part C of Schedule Il to the

Companies Act, 2013 are generally adhered to, except in respect of
class of assets, based on internal technical evaluation, where a different
estimate of useful life is considered suitable.

f)  Depreciation is provided on the straight-line method over the estimated
useful life of the asset, as follows:

Asset Type Depreciation Rate (%) per annum
Furniture & Fixture 10.00
Office Equipment 33.33
Computers 33.33
Purchased Software 33.33
Internally Developed Software 20.00
Leasehold Improvements Over remaining period of lease
Plant & Machinery 20.00

The Bank assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any
indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the
Bank estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. If such recoverable
amount of the asset is less than its carrying value, the carrying value
is reduced to the recoverable amount. The reduction is treated as an
impairment loss and is recognized in the profit and loss account for the
period. If at the balance sheet date there is an indication that previously
assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is
reassessed and the asset is reflected at the recoverable amount.

h)  Capital work in progress includes cost of fixed assets that are not ready
for their intended use and also includes advances paid to acquire fixed
assets.

Employee Benefits

a) Provident Fund — Defined Contribution Plan
The Bank contributes to provident fund which is a defined contribution
retirement plan for eligible employees. These contributions are accounted
on an accrual basis and are charged to the Profit and Loss Account.

b)  Gratuity - Defined benefit Plan
Gratuity Liabilities are defined obligations and Bank’s contribution towards
the same is determined by an independent actuary based on the projected
unit credit method as at the balance sheet date as per requirements of
AS -15 (Revised 2005) — Employee Benefits. Actuarial gains / losses are
immediately taken to Profit and Loss Account and are not deferred.

c) Employee share-based payments
The eligible employees of the Bank have been granted remuneration in
the form of Equity Plans by Australia and New Zealand Banking Group

Page 1 Continued......
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Limited (Head Office). As per this plan, Equity is delivered as either the
bank’s shares or the bank’s share rights. During the year, the Bank has
charged an amount pertaining to these under the head “Payments to and
provisions for employees”.
4.4 Taxation
Income tax expense comprises of current tax and deferred tax charge.
a) Current taxes
The current charge for income tax is based on the estimated tax liability as
computed after taking credit for allowances and exemptions in accordance
with the Income tax Act, 1961 applicable for the year.

Deferred taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for the future tax
consequences attributable to timing differences that result between the
profit offered for income taxes and the profit as per the Bank’s financial
statements.

The deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised using the tax
rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that their future realisation is reasonably certain. However where
there is unabsorbed depreciation and carry forward losses under taxation
laws, deferred tax assets are recognised only if there is virtual certainty
of realisation of such asset.

Deferred tax assets are reviewed as at each balance sheet date and
appropriately adjusted to reflect the amount that there is reasonably/
virtual certain to be realised.

4.5 Leases

Operating Lease

Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and
benefits of ownership of the leased items are classified as operating
leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the
profit and loss account over the term of the lease on a straight line basis.

Finance Lease

Leases where the lessee effectively retains substantially all the risks and
benefits of ownership of the leased items are classified as finance leases.
At the inception, lease is recognised as an asset and a liability at lower
of fair value of leased asset and the present value of minimum lease
payments. Lease payments are appropriated between finance charge
and the reduction of outstanding liability so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the balance of the liability. The costs identified
as directly attributable to activities performed by the lessee for a finance
lease are included as part of the amount recognised as an asset under
the lease.

4.6 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets
a)

a)

The Bank creates a provision when there is present obligation as a result
of a past event that probably requires an outflow of resources to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is
a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will
not, require an outflow of resources. When there is a possible obligation
or a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of
resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to
reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer probable that an outflow
of resources would be required to settle the obligation, the provision is
reversed.

¢) Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements.

4.7 Foreign Exchange Transactions

a) Monetary Assets, Liabilities and Contingent liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the balance sheet date at rates of
exchange notified by the Foreign Exchange Dealers’ Association of India
(FEDAI) on that date. The resultant profit or losses including those on
cancelled contracts is recognized in the profit and loss account and related
assets and liabilities are accordingly stated in the balance sheet.

Foreign Currency profit & loss are translated at month end FEDAI Rate.

Foreign exchange contracts outstanding at the balance sheet date are
marked to market at rates notified by FEDAI for specified maturities,
suitably interpolated for in-between maturity contracts as specified by
FEDAI. Contracts of maturities over 12 months (long term forex contracts)
are marked to market at rates derived from the Reuter’s curve for that
respective currency. The resulting profit or losses are recognized in the
profit or loss account.

4.8 Investments

Classification and valuation of the Bank’s investments is carried out in
accordance with extant RBI guidelines on Investment classification and
valuation.

Investments are accounted on settlement date basis. Investments are classified
as “Held for trading” (HFT) or “Available for Sale” (AFS) and “Held to Maturity”
(HTM) in accordance with RBI guidelines. During the year ended 31 March
2015, the Bank has not classified any investments in HTM category. Under
each of these classifications, investments are further categorized under i)
Government securities ii) Other approved securities iii) Shares iv) Debentures
and bonds v) Subsidiaries and vi) Others.

a) Acquisition cost
Cost of Investments excludes broken period interest paid on acquisition
of investments. Brokerage, Commission etc paid at the time of acquisition
are charged to the Profit and Loss account. Broken period interest on
debt instrument is accounted for in accordance with RBI guidelines.

Sale of Investment

Profit / Loss on sale of investments under the HFT and AFS categories
are taken to the Profit and Loss account. First in First out (FIFO) method
is applied to arrive at the cost of investments.

Valuation of Investments

Investments under AFS category are marked to market on a quarterly
basis and those classified under HFT are marked to market on a monthly
basis. Investments classified under the HFT and AFS categories are
valued at lower of acquisition cost or market value. Securities are valued
scrip wise and depreciation / appreciation is aggregated for each category.
Net depreciation per category is provided for while net appreciation is
ignored. Book value of the individual security is not changed consequent
to revaluation of the security.

Treasury bills being discounted instruments are valued at the carrying
cost.

Transfer of securities between categories

Reclassification of investments from one category to other is done in
accordance with RBI guidelines and any such transfer is accounted for
at the lower of acquisition cost / book value / market value as on the date
of transfer, and depreciation if any on such transfer is fully accounted for.

d)

4.9 Repo/Reverse repo

In accordance with the RBI guidelines, repurchase (repos) and reverse
repurchase (reverse repos) transactions are accounted as collateralised
borrowing and lending.

The Bank follows aforesaid principle to account repo and reverse repo
transactions undertaken under Liquidity Adjustment Facility (LAF).

4.10 Advances

Classification and provisions of advances of the Bank are carried out in
accordance with the extant RBI guidelines on Income Recognition and Asset
Classification of Advances.

Advances are classified as performing and non performing based on the
RBI's prudential norms on classification.

Provisioning

Advances are stated net of specific provisions made towards non
performing advances. The Bank maintains a provision on standard assets
at rates and as per norms prescribed by RBI. Loan loss provisions in
respect of non performing advances are made based on management’s
assessment of the degree of impairment of advances subject to the
minimum provisioning level in accordance with prudential norms
prescribed by RBI.

Recovery in respect of non performing advances
Amount recovered from non performing advances are first applied towards
outstanding principal.

a)

b)

c)

S
-
e

Derivative Transactions
a) The Bank enters into derivative contracts such as interest rate swaps,
cross currency swaps, foreign exchange contracts and foreign exchange

options.

These derivatives are part of the trading book and are recognised at fair
value. The resultant gain / loss are recorded in the profit and loss account
while the corresponding unrealised gain / loss are reflected in the balance
sheet under the head Other assets / Other liabilities. The notional values
of these contracts are recorded as contingent liabilities.

The Bank maintains a provision on standard derivative exposure at rates
prescribed by RBI.

Amounts due to the Bank under derivative contracts which remain
unpaid in cash for more than 90 days in the specified date of payment
are classified as non-performing assets.

4.12 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, balances with RBI, balances
with other banks and money at call and short notice.

SCHEDULE 18: NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR Quantitative Disclosures' (Amount in 3'000s) (iv) Movement of provisions for NPAs
ENDED 31 MARCH 2015 s As at 31 March 2015 As at 31 March 2014 (excluding provisions on standard assets)
i r. ) -

1. Cap.ltal ) - . No | Particulars Currency |Interest Rate| Currency |Interest Rate (a) Opening balance 1852290 | 280,775
Durlng the year, the Bank has not received any additional capital from Head Derivatives | Derivatives | Derivatives | Derivatives (b) Provisions made during the year _ _
Offlce.. (PI'EVIOlUS year - NIL). . ) 1 | Derivatives (Notional Principal Amount) (c) Write-off/ write-back of
Iri;éeg;lic?ggg:);s)at 31 March 2015 is 12,064,959 (3'000s) (Previous year a) Forhedging _ _ _ _ excess provisions 185,290 95,485

2 Capital Ratios: b) For trading 51,149,265 | 181,814,193 | 40,403,135 | 180,062,403 (d) Closing balance -| 185290

' Th: Bank's Ca-p'tal fo Risk-weighted Asset Ratio (CRARY) s caloulated in 2 | Marked to Market Positions (Net) The Bank has no accounts restructured, sale of financial assets to securitisation
i isk-wei i i u i : :

/ reconstruction Company, purchase / sale of NPAs during the year and hence
accordance with the RBI's ‘Basel |1l Capital regulations’ issued vide RBI circular a) Asset(+) 2855116 | 1022209 | 1,924068| 1224737 ], = O palr)timylafs o e restruCtured detgils : fyfinancial acente
DBOD.No.BP.BC.6/21.06.201/2014-15 dated 1 July 2014. Under the Basel lll b) Liability (-) (2,944,385) | (1,031,896) | (2,109,382) | (1,371,462) || sold to securitisation / reconstruction company for asset reconstruction and details
framework, the Bank is required to maintain a minimum total capital adequacy Credit Exposure? 6,140,043 | 2,848,071 | 4719,795| 2,548,595 | | of non-performing asset purchased / sold are not applicable (Previous year Nil).
ratio of 9% on an ongoing basis for credit risk, market risk and operational ——— — -
risk, with a minimum Common Equity Tier | capital ratio of 5.5% and minimum Likely impact of one percentage change in interest rate (100*PV01) 10. Concentration of Deposits, Advances, Exposures and NPAs

i i i 0 .
Tier | capital ratio of 7%. a) on Ijedgmg a) Concentration of Deposits (Amount in T'000s)
The Bank’s capital adequacy ratio as per Basel Il is as follows: (Amount in derivatives - - - -
2000s) " As at As at
b) on trading 31 March 2015 | 31 March 2014
s As at As at derivatives 69,099 105,409 22,764 8,503 ool d Soft | 0 " 22030351 21030430
r .
No | Particulars 31 March | 31 March ||| 5 | Maximum of 100*PV01 observed during the year® otal deposits of twenty largest depositors 050 250,
2015 2014 a) onhedging Percentage of deposits of twenty largest
P— - I o o . . . " ||| depositors to total deposits of the Bank 98.78% 97.54%
1 C.ommon I.Equny.TleoM capital ratio (%) 21.42043 30-430/0 b) on trading 83,356 121,847 29,427 59,890 c o of Ad . A 02000
2 | Tier 1 capital ratio (%) 21.42% 30.43% 6 | Minimum of 100°PVO1 observed during the year® b) oncentration of Advances (Amount in S)
3 | Tier 2 capital ratio (%) 0.43% 0.39% - As at As at
ital rat a)_on hedging - - - - 31 March 2015 | 31 March 2014
4 | Total Capital ratio (CRAR) (%) 21.85% 30.82% ° arc! arc
- b) on trading 19,318 6,576 21,196 2,529
5 | Percentage of the shareholding of the " Discl udes Torei n ract Total advances to twenty largest borrowers 29,898,111 25,761,855
Government of India in public sector banks . . sciosure excludes foreign exchange coniracts. Percentage of advance to twenty largest
2 Represents total exposure based on current exposure method as per RBI master g y larg 0 N
6 | Amount of equity capital raised - - || circular Exposure Norms DBOD.No.Dir.BC.12/13.03.00/2014-15 dated 1 July 2014, || Porrowers to total advances of the Bank 46.67% 52.29%
7 | Amount of Additional Tier 1 capital raised; 3The maximum / minimum calculation is based on the monthly PV01 data submitted | *Advances represent credit exposure (funded and non funded) including
of which PNCPS: PDI: - || to RBI. gecr|\1/g§|1v§so3e>(<)%(;;g;i e;s5 Zer IEB1I T?stzeé'&rcular Exposure Norms DBOD.No.Dir.
8 | Amount of Tier 2 capital raised; of which 9. Asset Quality . o . ate uy .
Debt capital instrument: Preference Non Performing Assets (Amount in ¥'000s) Concentration of Exposures** (Amount in ¥'000s)
Share Capital Instruments: [Perpetual
; As at As at As at As at
Cumulative Preference Shares (PCPS) / - “||| Particulars 31 March | 31 March 31 March 2015 | 31 March 2014
Redeemable Non-Cumulative Preference 2015 2014
Shares (RNCPS)/ Redeemable Cumulative - - Total exposure to twenty largest
Preference Shares (RCPS)] (i) Net NPAs to Net Advances (%) - - ||| borrowers/ customers 29,898,111 25,761,855
3. Investments (i) Movement of NPAs (Gross) Percentage of exposures to twenty largest
: v A (a) Opening balance 185290 280.775 | || borrowers/ customers to total exposure of
(Amount in ¥'000s) pening : : the Bank on borrowers/ customers 46.67% 52.29%
As at As at (b) Additions during the year - - E nclud it (funded and funded), derivati
- - **Exposure includes credit exposure (funded and non-funded), derivative exposure
) 31 March | 31 March (¢) Reductions during the year 185,290 95485 || 4nd investment exposure as per RBI master circular Exposure Norms DBOD.
Particulars 2015 2014 (d) Closing balance -| 185,290 | [ No.Dir.BC.12/13.03.00/2014-15 dated 1 July 2014. However there is no investment
1) Value of Investments (i) Movement of Net NPAs exposure as on 31 March 2015.
(i) Gross Value of Investments 18,789,717 | 15,655,033 (a) Opening balance - -|lc) Concentration of NPAs (Amount in Z:000s)
(@) InIndia 18,789,717 | 15,655,033 (b) Additions during the year _ ~ As at As at
(b) Outside India - (c) Reductions during the year - - 31 March 2015 | 31 March 2014
(if) Provisions for Depreciation 1,036 1 (d) Closing balance - - ||| Total Exposure to NPA accounts - 185,290
(@) In India 1,036 111
(b) Outside India - - || 11. Sector-wise Advances (Amount in ¥'000s)
(iii) Net Value of Investments 18,788,681 | 15,654,922 Sector As at 31 March 2015 As at 31 March 2014
(a) In India 18,788,681 | 15,654,922 Outstanding Gross NPAs Percentage of Outstanding Gross NPAs Percentage of
(b) Outside India - - Total Advances Gross NPAs to | Total Advances Gross NPAs to
A Total Advances Total Advances
2) Movement of provisions held in that sector in that sector
towards depreciation on Investments —
(i) Opening Balance 11 445 A_|Priority ?ector - —
(i) Add: Provisions made during the year 925 - 1 Agriculture and allied activities - - - - - -
(il Less: Write-off / write back of excess 2 Advances to industries sector 8,755,738 - - 8,397,879 - -
s ) eligible as priority sector lending
provisions during the year - 334 -
(iv) Closing balance 1,036 11 8 Services - - - - - -

There are no non performing Investments as at 31 March 2015 (Previous year Nil). 4 Personal loans - - - - - -

. ) Sub - total - A 8,755,738 - - 8,397,879 - -

4. Repo/Reverse Repo Transactions (in face value terms) —

(Amount in ¥000s) B Non Priority Sector
Daily 1 Agriculture and allied activities - - - - - -
Minimum | Maximum Average 2 Industry 8,626,987 - - 6,644,809 185,290 2.79%
outstanding | outstanding | outstanding | Outstanding 3 Services 5,200,984 - - 5,614,912 - -
during the | during the | during the ason 31 1 P T
Particulars year year year March 2015 ersonat loans - - - - - -
Securities sold 250,000 | 1,250,000 650,000 - Sub-total -B 13,827,971 : : 12,259,721 : :
under repo (260,000) | (2,392,000) | (1,057,829) () Total(A + B) 22,583,709 - - 20,657,600 - -
i. Government 250,000 | 1,250,000 650,000 - -
securities (260,000) | (2,392,000) | (1,057,829) (-) || 12-_Movement of NPA (Amount in ¥'000s)
i. Corporate debt Particulars As at 31 March 2015 As at 31 March 2014
securities - - - - ||| Gross NPAs as on 1April (Opening Balance) 185,290 280,775
Securities purchased Additions (new NPAs) during the year - -
under reverse repo - - - “1|| Sub-total (A) 185,290 280,775
i. Government Less:-
securities - - - - T ot
ii. Corporate debt (I) por a, ons - - - -
securities R R R _ ||| (i) Recoveries (excluding recoveries made from upgraded accounts) - 95,485

The above disclosure includes LAF/MSF done with RBI. (i) Write-offs 185,290 -

The days with nil outstanding have been excluded while computing minimum, || Sub-total (B) 185,290 95,485

maximum and average outstand|lng. ) Gross NPAs as on 31 March (closing balance) (A-B) - 185,290

Figures in brackets indicate previous year figures.

13. Overseas Assets, NPAs and Revenue

5. Non SLR Investment Portfolio As the Bank is a branch of a foreign bank, this disclosure is considered as not applicable.
During the year ended 31 March 2015, there was no investment in Non SLR . o
securities (Previous year Nil). 14. Provisions on Standard Assets (Amount in ¥'000s)
6. Sale and Transfers to / from HTM category Particulars As at 31 March 2015 As at 31 March 2014
No investments were classified under the category HTM during the year ended | | General Provision on Advances 90,335 81,889
31 March 2015, consequently there was no sale or transfer to / from HTM | | General Provision on Credit Exposure on derivatives 66,373 65,283
category (Previous year Nil).
7. Derivatives 15. Unhedged Foreign Currency Exposure
' Details of ding F 4 Rate A / { Rate S The Bank’s credit policy governs management of currency induced credit risk. As per Bank’s policy and procedures, the Bank closely monitors the unhedged
etails of outstanding Forward Rate Agreements / Inferes A ate twa ;000 foreign currency exposures of all corporate clients. The Bank collects information from clients as regards their Risk Management policy and Foreign Exchange
(Amount in s) hedging policy as well as their open Foreign Exchange positions owing to their FX denominated borrowings (ECBs, Buyers’ credit etc) and other liabilities. The
As at As at information available is considered in the borrower’s annual review credit memorandum and assessment of qualitative scores in the risk rating score-card. Interim
31 March 31 March findings are put up for discussions and noting to Risk Management Committee (RMC).
Particulars 2015 2014 As at 31 March 2015, the Bank has provided incremental provisions of 84,823 (Z'000s) and held incremental capital of 312,377 (¥'000s).
- - — ]
i) The notional principal of swap agreements' | 181,814,193 | 180,062,403 16. Business Ratios
i) Losses which would be incurred if -
counterparties failed to fulfill their Sr. No. | Particulars For the year ended 31 March 2015 | For the year ended 31 March 2014
obligations under the agreements 1,022,209 1,224,737 ||| i. Interest income as a % to working funds' 5.61% 5.70%
iii) Collateral required by the Bank upon ii. Non-interest income as a % to working funds' 2.43% 0.81%
entering into swaps - -] . Operating profit as a % to working funds' 1.93% 1.48%
iv) Concentration of credit risk arising from iv. Return on assets? 1.11% 0.94%
the swaps? - :
- - V. Business per employee®* (3'000s) 527,776 500,247
- Banks in India 92.47% 99.01% - -
vi. Net Profit per employee* (3000s) 6,642 6,017
- Others 7.53% 0.99% "
- Vii. Percentage of Net NPA to Net Advances - -
v) The fair value of the swap book® (9,687) (146,725)

There were no Forward Rate agreements (FRAs) outstanding as at 31 March 2015
(Previous year Nil).

" The notional principal amount does not include Cross Currency Swaps.

2 The concentration is calculated on the basis of credit exposure.

3 The fair value denotes mark to market on the Interest Rate Swaps.

Exchange Traded Interest Rate Derivatives

The Bank has not done any transaction in Exchange Traded Derivatives during
the year ended 31 March 2015 (Previous year Nil).

Disclosures on risk exposure in derivative

Qualitative Disclosures

The Bank deals in derivatives for balance sheet management, market making
purposes and also offers currency and interest rate derivatives to its customers.

Dealing in the derivatives is carried by the treasury front office team.
Confirmation, settlement, accounting, risk monitoring, reporting and compliance
are handled by independent teams who have clearly defined responsibilities.

Derivative financial instruments are carried at fair value.

The Bank has a risk management and control framework to support its trading
and balance sheet activities. The framework incorporates a risk measurement
approach to quantify the magnitude of market risk within trading and balance
sheet portfolios.

Market risk limits are allocated at various levels and are reported and monitored
by Market Risk on a daily basis. The detailed limits framework allocates
individual limits to manage and control asset classes, risk factors and profit and
loss limits (to monitor and manage the performance of the trading portfolios).

Akey measure of market risk is Value at Risk (VaR). VaR is a statistical estimate
of the possible daily loss and is based on historical market movements. The
Bank measures VaR at a 99% confidence interval. The Bank’s standard VaR
approach for both traded and non-traded risk is historical simulation. The Bank
calculates VaR using historical changes in market rates, prices and volatilities
over the previous 500 business days. Traded and non-traded VaR is calculated
using a one-day holding period. The bank also utilises a number of other risk
measures (e.g. stress testing) and risk sensitivity limits to measure and manage
market risk.

Credit risk is managed on the basis of detailed risk profile of the counterparty,
related conditions and expectations. The Bank generally uses International
Swaps and Derivatives Association (ISDA) Master Agreements with its
counterparties for derivatives activities.

The Bank applies Current exposure methodology to manage credit risk
associated with derivative transactions. This is computed by taking the sum
of its mark-to-market value if positive and its potential future exposure which
is calculated based on its notional value and residual maturity.

The Bank has made provision on such credit exposures in accordance with
RBI circular DBOD.No.BP.BC.9/21.04.048/2014-15 dated 1 July 2014.

" Working fund is computed based on average of total assets (excluding accumulated losses) as reported to RBI in Form X under section 27 of the Banking Regulation

Act, 1949 during the financial year.

2 Return on assets is with reference to average working fund (i.e. total of assets excluding accumulated losses).

3 Business is calculated as deposits plus advances excluding interbank deposits. Ratio is computed basis number of employees as at 31 March 2015.

4 Ratio is computed basis number of employees as at 31 March 2015.
17. Maturity Patterns of Assets and Liabilities’
As at 31 March 2015

(Amount in ¥'000s)

Maturity Day 1 2-7days | 8-14days | 15-28 days | 29 days - Over Over Over Over Over Total
Bucket 3 months | 3 months - | 6 months - | 1year- | 3years- | 5years
6 months 1 year 3years | 5years

Deposits 81,126 | 3,636,757 | 2,784,883 | 4,108,555 | 3,554,826 | 1,765,031 | 4,982,391 | 1,386,961 25 1,696 | 22,302,151
Advances 57,788 | 1,476,880 | 2,787,004 | 3,161,975| 9,977,304 | 2,886,859 399,197 | 1,836,702 - -| 22,583,709
Investments | 11,868,406 802,286 385,673 522,335 | 3,157,919 584,398 | 1,190,172 | 277,128 6 358 | 18,788,681
Borrowings 8,489 | 2,012,190 | 3,145,000 | 3,817,190 | 5,609,543 767,190 - - - -| 15,359,602
Foreign

Currency

Assets? 1,128,124 9,018 25,640 | 1,712,274 | 4,411,215 | 2,646,698 103,218 | 339,160 | 339,160 | 202,599 | 10,917,106
Foreign

Currency

Liabilities? 51,816 | 2,203,625 | 3,449,764 | 3,824,000 | 5,400,533 67,196 -| 591,885 - 659 | 15,589,478
As at 31 March 2014 (Amount in ¥'000s)
Maturity Day 1 2-7 days 8-14 days | 15-28 days | 29 days - Over Over Over Over Over 5 Total
Bucket 3 months | 3 months - | 6 months | 1year- | 3years- | years

6 months -1 year 3years | 5years

Deposits 51,540 | 1,034,243 | 3,530,781 | 4,551,207 | 6,547,125| 1,270,055| 3,938,844 | 636,512 - 385 | 21,560,692
Advances 61,385 | 1,551,277 514,213 | 3,641,129 | 7,172,441 | 4,521,460 755,625 | 2,254,780 - -| 20,472,310
Investments | 8,056,961 930,362 300,409 741726 | 3,856,487 602,315 975,507 | 161,345 - 29,810 | 15,654,922
Borrowings 2,052 | 3,045,507 - 348,055 | 10,301,190 681,835 - - - -| 14,378,639
Foreign

Currency

Assets? 763,491 547,330 - 223,103 | 4,365,834 | 1,827,975 70,688 - -| 179,744 | 17,978,165
Foreign

Currency

Liabilities? 35,359 199,844 233,151 | 1,463,832 | 14,382,668 682,356 -| 298,128 - 1,719 | 17,297,057

" The maturity pattern has been compiled in the same manner as required for the RBI DSB returns.

2 Foreign currency assets/liabilities exclude off-balance sheet assets and liabilities.

18. Exposures to Real Estate Sector and Capital Market

The Bank has no direct or indirect exposure to Real Estate Sector and Capital Market hence the disclosure on Real Estate Sector and Capital Market is not

applicable (Previous year Nil).

Page 2 Continued......



Continued from Page 2.

; For the year ended 31 March 2014 Total future minimum lease payments under the non-cancellable finance lease
4 | Secured wholesale fundin
‘ N’ 0 5 | Additional - " ? Hich (Amount in ¥'000s) as at 31 March 2015:
itional requirements, of whicl in%
Vd | = ‘ ' : . Business Segments Treasury | Corporate/ | Retail Total (Amount in ¥'000s)
(i) | Outflows related to derivative exposures 41,035,141 41,035,141 Wholesale | Banking Particulars As at 31 March 2015 As at 31 March 2014
AUSTRALIA AND NEW ZEALAND and other collateral requirements Banking
" : Lease Present Lease Present
BANKING GROUP LIMITED - (iiy | Outflows related to loss of funding on - “ [ [Revenue 1083514 | 2425126 | 3508640 payments | value | payments | value
MUMBAI BRANCH debt products of lease of lease
(iiy | Credit and liquidity facilties 217,322 211,732 Eesﬁ" - 523,670 | 363,647 4473 891,790 payments payments
(Incorporated in Australia with limited liability) 6 | Other contractual funding obligations 5,082,807 | 5,082,807 ||| Unallocated expenses ~ [ "Not later than one year 308 296 1453 1,381
19. Risk category wise Country Exposure 7 | Other contingent funding obligations 26,865,850 | 1,343,293 ?peratl?g profit gz;’;zg Later than one year but 93 78 611 499
ncome taxes , :
Provision for country risk exposure as per RBI circular DBOD.No.BP. || 8 | Total Cash Outflows 50,976,891 E ” povs not later than five years
BC.9/21.04.048/2014-15 dated 1 July 2014 is as follows: Cash Inflows xtraordinary profit/ loss ~ ||| Later than five years - - - -
(Amount in 30005) g T secured lending (e.g. reverse repos) - ][ et pr?flt - 205483 |1 30. Deferred Taxes
Eistk EF““ded hPIL°"iSi‘:"3 . EF”“ded hﬂ?"‘“‘:g 4 ||[10 | inflows from fully performing exposures 52,013,126 | 47,698,551 ||| Other information: The deferred tax asset of 104,195 (Z000s) as at 31 March 2015 is included
ategory (nei()p:ssg:%1 I\:ar :I?;MS (nef)p:ssg:; I\:ar :;;014 11 | Other cash inflows 104,649 52,324 || | Segment assets 35,689,462 | 20,753,426 - | 56,442,888 under Schedule 11 — Other assets (Previous year 47,563 (3'000s)).
March 2015 March 2014 12 | Total Cash Inflows 47,750,875 Unallocated assets 339,677 Thcla zri?aryhcogwﬁonentshthat gave rifsi to deferred tax assets and liabilities
included in the balance sheet are as follows:
Insignificant 1,078,016 416 733,253 - Total Total assets _ 56,782,565 (Amount in £000s)
Low N N N N Adjusted Segment liabilities 33,831,869 | 16,562,600 | 5,893,628 | 56,288,097
Value Unallocated liabilities 494,468 As at As at
Moderate - - - - :
o - - - —|[21 | TOTAL HaLA 14,784,214 || Total liabilities 56,782,565 31 March 2015 | 31 March 2014
ah 22 | Total Net Cash Outflows 3,226,016 Part B: Geoaranhic seaments Deferred Tax Assets
Very High - - - - || 23 [ Liquidity Coverage Ratio (%) 116 * seographic seg Provision for bad and doubtful debts - 71,911
Restricted B B B B - - The Bank operates as a single unit in India and as such has no identifiable - -
*The data have been computed as simple average of monthly observation over the geographical segments subject to dissimilar risk and returns. Hence, no Straight lining of rent 23,404 25,901
Off-credit - - - - || quarter ended 31 March 2015. information relating to geographical segments are presented. General provisions for standard 104,666 Nil
. s assets and country risk*
Total u—- 1’078’016, — 416 733,253 . 26. Employee Benefits 28. Related Party Disclosures y
As per RBI guidelines, the provision is created for only those countries where the Provident Fund — Defined contribution plan . o ) . Deferred Tax Assets 128,070 97,812
net funded exposure exceeded 1% of the total assets as at 31 March 2015. Further, ) ‘ ) : Related party disclosure as required in accordance Wfth AS 18 - "Related Party Deferred Tax Liability
lower provisions of 25% of the requirement have been created with respect to short The Bank] has re'coglmsed 24,214 I(? 000s) in the E’roﬂt and Loss Acgount as Disclosures” and RBI Guidelines, is provided below: bt .
term exposures (i.e. exposures with contractual maturity of less than 180 days). employer's contribution to the provident fund (Previous Year 22,806 (R000s)). | A List of Related parties' Depreciation on fixed assets (23.875) (50,249)
20. Details of Single Borrower Limit (SBL)/ Group Borrower Limit (GBL) Gratuity - Defined benefit plan Head Office and Branches Deferred Tax Llablh_ty — (23,875) (50,249)
exceeded by the Bank The Company has adopted Accounting Standard 15 (Revised 2005) -Employee | Australia and New Zealand Banking Group Limited, Australia Net Deferred Tax (Liability)/Asset 104,195 47,563
As at the year-end 31 March 2015, the Bank is in compliance with RBI master Beqefits (AS‘ 15) aﬂd determingd the gctuarial liability for gratuity as per the Australia and New Zealand Banking Group Ltd - Singapore *Thg Bank did not recognise deferred tax gssets of 363,667 (3'000s) on general
circular Exposure Norms DBOD.No.Dir.BC.12/13.03.00/2014-15 dated 1 July projected unit credit method using an independent actuary. Austral!a and New Zealand Bank?ng Group Ltd - New York provisions on standard assets and country risk for the year ended 31 March 2014.
2014 on single borrower and group borrower limits. The principal actuarial assumptions used as at the balance sheet date are as ﬁustra:la ang HGW gea:ang Ea”::'”g ngUP t:g - iapzn 31. Capital Commitments
. ) ) ) : ustralia and New Zealand Banking Grou - London
However, during the financial year 2014-15, breaches in SBL were observed follows: (Amount in Z000s) Australia and New Zealand Banking Grous Ltd - Hong Kong Capital Commitment as on 31 March 2015 is 11,799 (X'000s) (Previous year
for the foII(l)wm9 clients: o - Australia and New Zealand Banking Group Ltd — Fiji 122,154 (X'000s)).
e Ruchi Soya Industries Limited Particulars As at As at Australia and New Zealand Banking Group Ltd — Frankfurt 32. Operating Expenses
e Reliance Industries Limited 31 March | 31 March Australia and New Zealand Banking Group Ltd - PNG : ) ) ) )
In Reliance Industries Limited a Mark to Market (MTM) movement in outstanding 2015 2014 Other G Entiti Other expenses in Schedule 16, includes information service fees (data
o - - Other Group Entities connectivity and license charges), which are in excess of 1% of total income
market trades resulted in technical SBL breach, and was corrected soon-after. || Reconciliation of opening and closing balance of A . Iy ! ¥ ges), whi n ex 8 : .
™ b hin sindle b limitin Ruchi S Industries Limited. || the present value of the defined benefit obligation ANZ Bank (Vietnam) Limited amounting to 53,638 (3'000s). During the year ended 31 March 2014, support
'he cause of breach In single borrower fimit In Ruchi Soya Industries Limited, ANZ Bank New Zealand Limited service fees amounting to 38,861 (3'000s) was in excess of 1% of total income.
in addition to the passive movement in MTM was on account of procedural || Present value of obligation as at April 1 15,017 10,917 ANZ National Bank Limited
issues in calculating exposure under a new product. The procedures and | ) 33. Other Assets and Other Liabilities
. . ) nterest cost 1,328 884 ANZ Royal Bank (Cambodia) Ltd
processes in question have since been strengthened. Current semvi " 593 5502 Australia and New Zealand Bank (China) Company Limited ‘Others’ reported under Other assets in Schedule 11 includes MTM gain on
The excesses were duly reported and approved by RMC and India Executive ||-~1ent SEVICe €os ’ : ANZ Capital Private Limited outstanding FX and Derivative 5,364,662 (X'000s) (Previous year 7,451,321
Committee (India Exco). Acquisition cost - - ANZ Support Services India Pvt Limited (x'000s)). ‘Others (including provisions)' reported under Other liabilities
As per the extant RBI guidelines, the Bank with the approval of the India Exco || Benefits paid (1312) - ANZ Operations & Technology Private Limited and provisions in Schedule 5 includes MTM losses on outstanding FX and
can enhance exposure to single borrower or group borrower by a further 5% of || Actuarial (gai igati ANZ Support Services Employees Group Gratuity Scheme Derivatives 5,445,066 ('000s) (Previous year 8,055,658 (X000s)).
ctuarial (gain)/loss on obligation 2,388 (2,286) : > P ’
the capital funds. During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Bank enhanced |5 oo e t March 31 23355 15017 ANZ Operations & Technology Private Limited Gratuity Fund Trust 34. Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
SBL for below customers from 15% to 20% of the capital funds. resent value of obligation as at Marc ’ ) ANZ Global Services and Operations (Manila), Inc. . . ) .
° ° P i . : There are no delays in payments to micro and small enterprises as required to
. . Reconciliation of opening and closing balance of The ab t includ lv th lated parti ith whom t i . ¥S In payn " pri N
e Ruchi Soya Industries Limited the fair value of the plan assets € above category Includes only those related parties with whom transactions be disclosed under ‘The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development
o Aditya Birla Retail Limited . : - ] have occurred during the year and / or previous year. Act, 2006'. The determination has been made to the extent such parties were
Further, the Bank held India Exco approvals for incremental 5% limits for the Fair value of plan assets as at April 1 3175 9,399 B. Key Management Personnel identified based on the information available (Previous year Nil).
below customers. Expected retur on plan assets 1,598 1,009 Mr. Sanjeev Bajaj, Chief Executive Officer (18 February 2015 onwards). 35. Provisions and Contingencies
e JSW Steel Limited Contributions 8,684 3255 Mr. Subhas DeGamia, Chief Executive Officer (From 1 April 2014 to Break up of provisions and contingencies
e  Reliance Industries Limited. Benefits paid (1,312) - 8 March 2015). ' (Amount in ¥'000s)
During previous yearthe Eank complied with RBI guildelines onsingle t.)orlrower Actuarial gain/(loss) on plan assets (136) 2 |[c. Transactions with related parties As at As at
and group borrower limits. However,l bregch in Single Borrower Limit was Fair value of plan assets as at March 31 22,609 13,775 (Amount in 3'000s) 31 March | 31 March
observed in case of Mylan Laboratories Limited. The same was because of —— 2015 2014
MTM movement in outstanding market trades, and was corrected soon-after. Amount recognised in Balance sheet Particulars Head Office and Other Group Entities Provisions for it - iment 975 334
Further, as per extant RBI guidelines, the Bank enhanced single borrower limit || Fair value of plan assets as at March 31 22,609 13,775 Branches rovis!ons or depreciation on investmen : (334)
;SLAJSSW Steel Limited with the approval of the India EXCO by 5% of capital "5 /oo o of obligation as at March 31 23.355 15,017 31A|; at . OMta);im:;m MAS zt230115 oMta);img-m ErostPn :owarjs NtPAd(nzt of bid debts written off) o é (951,428:7)
: arc| utstanding |Marc utstandin
Assel(Liabilty) as at March 31 (746) | (1,242) 2015 | during the during the || oson foWards standarc asse's % '
21. Intra-Group Exposures n " " 9 9 Provision made towards Income tax
As at th 4 31 March 2015, the Bank is i i ith RBI Expenses recognised in Profit and Loss Account year year c " 377 256 336,714
s at the year-en arc , the Bank is in compliance wi - - Current tax , ,
circular DBOD.No.BP.BC.96/21.06.102/2013-14 dated 11 February 2014 on | Inferest Cost 1,328 884 ||| Borrowings 1432114 | 14,321,114 - - “Deferred tax (56.632) | 49.633
Management of Intra-Group Transactions and Exposures. These guidelines || Current Service cost 5,934 5,502 || | Deposits 8,906 242,865 | 6,487,367 | 7,392,300 — - - : !
:\)Aecarr?;oif;e(give frr]olmlj ?C]EObg 2?12 DurirIIEg tt‘TeEperiod OCtOg‘Z’ 2014 :0 Expected return on plan assets (1,352) | (1,009) ||| Placements -| 5,864,668 - ]| Otner ;;rovn'm'on Tnd czntlggeni:lesRl E 6 1576)
arc , breach in limits for Single Group Entity Exposure and Aggregate - - — ; - Provision towards Country Risk Exposure ,
Group Exposure was observed. The same was because of guarantees issued Net Actuarial (gain)/loss recognised in the year / period 2,278 (2,398) || | Advances - - - N ol 116323 290.189
in year 2011 and 2012 and MTM movement in outstanding market trades. || Net Cost 8,188 2,979 || | Investments - - - - ’ ’
Exposures have been brought within limits much earlier than RBI prescribed Balances with Banks 155550 | 1,699,220 3.993 107.457 36. Floating Provisions
timelines. i ’ = ! d . - . . .
. ) Assumptions Non-funded commitments| 7,570,036 | 8,309,590 26,518 | 1,622,256 The Bank did notlmamtaln any floating provision during the year ended 31
Other details of Intra-Group Exposure as at 31 March 2015 are provided below: || Valuation Method Projected Unit Credit | Projected Unit Credit March 2015 (Previous year Nil).
(Amount in¥'000s) || Discount rate 7.80% 9.25% (Amount in¥0005) | 37 praw Down from Reserves
Particulars As at Expected return on plan assets 9.15% 9.15% Particulars Head Office and Other Group Entities The Bank has utilised Investment Reserves of 142 (3*000s) towards provisions
31 March 2015 | | Mortaiity IAL Mortality Table | IAL Mortality Table Branches made during the year ended 31 March 2015 for depreciation in investments in
(a) Total amount of intra-group exposures 1,845,158 Ult. (2006-08) Ult. (2006-08) For the A,; at '.:‘1 For the A,; at '.:‘1 HFT category as per extant RBI guidelines (Previous year Nil).
r r r r i .
(b) Total amount of top-20 intra-group exposures 1,845,158 | || Salary escalation rate 8.00% 8.00% o 2015 o 2015 || 38 Disclosure of Complaints
(c) Percentage of intra-group exposures to total exposure* 2.09% ||| Withdrawal rate 8.00% 8.00% 31 March 31 March In accordance with RBI circulars DBOD.No.Leg.BC.21/09.07.006/2014-15
of the bank on borrowers / customers Retirement age 60 years 60 years 2015 2015 datedeJug/ 2(;14 dgtaglsdwnh respec? to cgjslton?er complaints and awards
*Total exposure includes Credit Exposure (funded and non funded), derivative Interest paid 30,674 8563 | 422381| 139,333 passed by banking Umbudsman are given below:
exposure and investment exposure to all corporate and inter-bank counterparties. Experience History 31 March | 31 March | 31 March ||| nterest received 17,047 i B —1|a) Customer Complaints
22. Unsecured Advances against intangible assets 2015 2014 2013 Rendering of services 608.895 50 467 _ _||| sr. | Particulars For the For the
During the year ended 31 March 2015 the Bank has not granted any advances || Defined Benefit Obligation at end of the (23,355) | (15,017) | (10.917) || e cimbursement of No. y;':'h:"df‘d y§1ar|\:nd?1d
against intangible securities such as charge over the rights, licenses, authority || Period expenses 9.391 18.463 R _ 20?;‘: 20:2(:
etc. (Previous year Nil). Plan Asset at end of the period 22,609 13,775 9,399 — - : : -
o Receiving of services - - 42,940 14,171 1| (a) | No. of complaints pending at the beginning - -
23. Provision made for Income tax for the year Funded Status (746) | (1,242)| (1,518) Payment for share based of the year
(Amountin %'000s) Experience Gain/(Loss) adjustments on 434 591 1,295 {| payment 40,796 16,391 - - ||| (b) | No. of complaints received during the year 2 1
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended plan "f’ib'“t'es : . Fees Paid 81 R 31 1| (©) [No. of complaints redressed during the year 2 1
31 March 2015 31 March 2014 Experience Gain/(Loss) adjustments on (135) 112 219 || Foes Received 15334 _ 4507 N ) [ No. of aint ding at the end of
Current Tax 377,256 336714 ||| plan assets ' ' (d) ho ;eacromp aints pending at the end o - -
Deferred Tax (56,632) 49,633 ||| Actuarial Gain/(Loss) due to change on (2,821) 1,695 (524) (Amount in ¥'000s) o Award 4 by the Banking Ombud
i ards passe e Banking Ombudsman
Total 320,624 386,347 | | |assumptions Particulars Head Office and | Other Group Entities || L. "2rds P y The Banking Bmbu
; . During the year ended March 31, 2012, employees were transferred from ANZ Branches Sr. Particulars For the For the
24. Disclosure of Penalties imposed by RBI Capital Private Limited (ANZ Capital) and consequently gratuity corpus, containing Asat31 | Maximum | Asat3l | Maximum No. year ended | year ended
During the financial year under review, no penalty was imposed by RBI on the | assets of 33,131 (X'000s) and liability of 2,495 ('000s), held with LIC by ANZ March | Outstand- | March | Outstand- 31 March | 31 March
Bank (Previous Year Nil). Capital was also transferred to Bank. On account of these there is difference in the 2014 ing duri 2014 ing duri 2015 2014
N ) gratuity liability as per books as on March 31, 2015 i.e. 31,381 (Z000s) (Previous lr:g uring ":g uring 111 a) | No. of unimplemented awards at the - -
25. Liquidity Coverage Ratio Year ¥1,877 (3'000s) and as per actuarial valuation i.e. 746 (Z:000s) (Previous : e year e year beginning of the year
Qualitative Disclosures: Year ¥ 1,242 '000s). Borrowings 10,601,080 | 10,601,080 - “|]| (b) | No. of awards passed by the Banking - -
The RBI vide circular DBOD.BP.BC.N0.120/21.04.098/2013-14 dated 9 June Compensated absences — Short-term Deposits 1,662 398,225 | 6,041,458 | 6,698,089 Ombudsman during the year
2014 Basel Il Framework on Liquidity Standards — Liquidity Coverage Ratio The actuarial liability of compensated absences of the employees of the Bank | | Placements -] 7,682,339 - ~||1(c) | No. of awards implemented during the year - -
(LCR), Liquidity Risk Monitoring Tools and LCR Disclosure Standards (LCR | ac o 91 March 2015 is Nil (Previous Year Ni pioy v (d) | No. of unimplemented awards at the end of : :
guidelines) has mandated minimum LCR of 60% for 2015 with a step up of ' vances . . . - the year
0, ini i 0 i - - - -
10% each year to reach minimum requirement of 100% by 1 January 2019. 27. Segmental reporting Investments 39. Letters of Comfort (LoCs) issued by Banks
The LCR guidelines aim to ensure that the bank maintains an adequate level Part A: Business Segments Balances with Banks 66,758 1,295,103 2,600 7,775 i i  Comf ) ( )
of unencumbered High Quality Liquid Assets (HQLA) that can be converted o o S - The Bank did not issue any Letter of Comfort during the year (Previous year
into cash to meet its liquidity needs for a 30 calendar day time horizon under QZ&?;SE:# du{fj;g; ?IS(E?iCI;tZa; aliimgl)?da ST :ﬁzss%ér(;c;;ppcgsit% !g?rl]iﬁlf Non-funded commitments| 6,647,832| 7,766,655 | 1,622,139] 1,727,783 Nil).
a significant severe liquidiy stress scenario spec.me‘d by RBI: ] These segments are identified based on nature of services provided, risks (Amount in¥'000s) | 40. Provisioning Coverage Ratio (PCR)
As at the year-end 31 March 2015, the Bank is in compliance with LCR and returns, organisational structure of the banks and the internal financial | [ particulars Head Office and Other Group Entities The Bank commenced operations in the financial year 2011-12, accordingly
guidelines. Over a period of time, there is a positive trenq in LCeratlo with reporting system. Branches regulations relating to PCR are not applicable.
average LCR for January 2015 to March 2015 at 116% against requirement of . ) L )
60%. The main drivers of LCR are holding in government securities and cash Treastl_lry Operattlons tsegrr:)ent dcorpprlse det';.'l‘fat'ves tradlng,t mone)l/tlmarkedt For the As at For the As at 41. Bancassurance Business
in hand (including balances held with Banks in India in INR). HQLA comprises operations, INVestments in bonas, treasury bills, government Securities an year ended| 31 March | year ended | 31 March The Bank does not undertake any bancassurance business (Previous year
of cash in hand (including balances held with Banks in India in INR), balance foreign exchange operations. The revenue of this segment consists of interest 31 March 2014 31 March | 2014 Nil). ! ( !
maintained with RBI in excess of CRR requirements, Government securities earned on ]nvestmentg and gains on sale of securltf|esl, profit on exchgnge; 2014 2014
holdings in excess of SLR requirements, Government securities within the and derivative transactions. The principal expenses of this segment consist o Interest paid 29535 5638 308149 | 1635025 || 42 Off —Balance Sheet SPVs sponsored
" f interest expense on funds borrowed, occupancy expenses, personnel costs, P ) ) ’ ' . . . .
mandatory SLR requirement, to the extent allowed by RBI under Marginal ther direct 4 allocated Inferest ved 17 581 (Which are required to be consolidated as per accounting norms)
Standing Facility, and Government securities within the mandatory SLR other direct expenses and allocated expenses. nterest receive , - - - There are no off - balance sheet SPVs sponsored during the year (Previous
requirement, to the extent allowed by RBI under Facility to avail Liquidity for Corporate / Wholesale Banking segment primarily comprise funded and || Rendering of services 686,713 32,407 - - car Nil) P gthey
Liquidity Coverage Ratio (FALLCR). Along with this, the Bank has progressively, non-funded facilities, cash management activities and fee based activities. || Raimbursement of 16.638 2042 47 _ Y ’ o o
after moving into CCIL’s guaranteed settlement window for FX forward Revenues of this segment consist of interest earned on loans extended t0 || o ooncec ' ’ 43. In terms of guidelines issued by RBI vide circular no. DBS.CO.ITC.BC.No. 6
transactions, lowered derivatives cash outflows. Trades which are settled clients and fees received from non-fund based activities like letter of credit, — - /31.02.008/2010-11 dated 29th April 2011 on “Working Group on Information
through CCIL (under guaranteed settlement window) are netted. Derivatives guarantee etc. The principal expenses of this segment consist of interest | | Receiving of services - - 40,560 4,790 Security, Electronic Banking, Technology Risk Management and Cyber Frauds
and FX cash flows are considered on gross basis for OTC derivatives. expense on deposits raised, occupancy expenses, personnel costs, other | | Payment for share based 53,635 21,358 - - - Implementahon of recommendatmns”, the Baqk has aligned its IT Policy
The Bank has diverse source of funding ranging from deposits from local direct expenses and allocated expenses. payment which was approvgd by Risk Management Comm|tt§e of the Bank on May 01,
corporate customers and interbank deposits, own capital funds as well as Retail / Private Banking segment primarily comprise of raising of deposits | | Fees Paid 72 - 27 - tzhoe1 let;I)g%Tr?rLy vtvr:t tzzrai%\';g:'iﬂg:;' ;C?eevotlfye::usrsizlpnrelivali\gs?ﬂﬁz
foreign currency borrowings from network branches. As at 31 March 2015 from retail customers and catering to loan requirements of such customers. ’ . g the year. An Indep ) P
X . . . IS ) Fees Received 9,735 - 2,925 - requirements of the above guidelines was conducted in September 2014. The
the Bank did not have Collateral Service Agreement (CSA) in place with any The revenue for the segment is mainly interest earned on the loans disbursed Bank is in compliance with requirements of the above quidelines
of its counterparty. Significant currencies are INR and USD and within the while the expense is mainly towards interest paid on the deposits raised, rental | Note: In accordance with the guidance on compliance with the accounting standards P q 9 .
same currency the mismatches are minimal. The Bank does not hold any expenses, personnel costs, other direct expenses and allocated expenses. | by banks issued by Reserve Bank of India, the Bank has not disclosed the details | 44. Disclosure on Remuneration
FCY HQLA. Thlere is a daily monitoring of LCR at group level and there isa Other Banking Business segment includes all other residual operations pertalnlngtothe related party where there is only one entity / person in any category In terms of guidelines issued by RBI vide circular no. DBOD
regular interaction between Group Treasury and Local Treasury. LCR is also such as para banking transactions/activities. Basis the materiality of revenue | of refated parties. No.BC.72/29.67.001/2011-12 dated 13" January 2012 on “Compensation
monitored by India Assets and Liabilities Committee (India ALCO). generated, this segment has been combined with Corporate / Wholesale | 29. Lease Disclosures of Whole Time Directors / Chief Executive Officers / Risk Takers and Control
Quantitative disclosure for LCR is provided below: Banking segment. At 31 March 2015. the Bank was obligated under operating and finance leases function staff, etc.” the Bank has submitted a declaration received from its Head
(Amount in ¥'000s) For th ded 31 March 2015 O . 9 eroperating o Office to RBI to the extent that the CEO’s compensation structure in India is in
or the year ende arcl for motor vehicles and operating lease for premises, which were used primarily formity with the Fi ial Stability Board (FSB) princiol 4 dard
For the year ended (Amount in 3°000s) for business purposes. ;on ormtlr:y v(\j/[t It e mlancu? te:' ||tg/I oard (FSB) principles and standards.
ence, the disclosure is not applicable.
31 March 2015* Business Segments Treasury | Corporate/ | Retail Total Operating Lease 45, Securitisati P
i . Securitisation
Unv;rgitartte d W;Otf?tle d V\éhol:_s ale | Banking Lease payments recognised in the Profit and Loss Account during the period X . o
v Ig Vgl anking April 2014 to March 2015 is ¥ 215,893 (3'000s) (Previous Year ¥ 171,289 The Bar)k has not sponsqued any Spema! Purpose Veh|c|(=T for securitization
(av:rgge) (av:r;ge) Revenue 2,089,281 | 1,987,481 -| 4,076,762 (F'000s)). transactions and no securitization transactions are outstanding as at 31 March
2015 (Previous year Nil) and hence disclosure is not applicable.
High Quality Liquid Assets Ees:lt oo 711,335 173,765 108 885,208 Total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating lease ( y ) PP
nallocated expenses - as at 31 March 2015: 46. Credit default swap
! ‘ Total High Quality Liquid Assets (HQLA) 14,784,214 ||| Operating profit 885,208 (Amount in ¥'000s) The Bank has not dealt in any Credit default swaps during the year ended 31
Cash Outflows Income taxes 320,624 || T particulars As at 31 As at 31 March 2015 (Previous year Nil).
2 | Retail deposits and deposits from small Extraordinary profit/ loss - March 2015 | March 2014 || 47. Transfers to Depositor Education and Awareness Fund (DEAF)
business customers, of which: Net profit 564,584 || 'Not later than one year 238,267 218,579 ||| Particulars For the year For the year
(i) | Stable deposits 102 5 ||| Other information: : ’ ended ended
(i) | Less stablo deposit 890 P Segment assels 35.458,765 | 22,789,014 58247779 Later than ?ne year but not later than five years 816,233 842,359 3 March | 31 March
A — Unallocated assets 327,652 || | Later than five years 82,824 106,917 2015 2014
3 | Unsecured wholesale funding, of which: :
- - - - Total assets 58,575,431 Finance Lease Opening balance of amounts transferred to DEAF - -
() | Operational deposits (all counterparties) 1807483 | 451161 Seqment liabilities 34,059,708 | 22,985,124 30 | 57,044,862 Lease payments recognised in the Profit and Loss Account during the || Add: Amounts transferred to DEAF during the year - -
(ii) | Non-operational deposits (all counterparties) 7,073916 | 2,852,663 ||| Unallocated liabilities 1,330,569 period April 2014 to March 2015 is ¥ 435 (% ‘000s) (Previous year ¥ 1,012 | | Less: Amounts reimbursed by DEAF towards claims - -
(i) | Unsecured debt - - ||| Total liabilities 58,575,431 (% ‘000s)). Closing balance of amounts transferred to DEAF - -
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Sd/-
Vinit Kumar Sarawgi
Chief Financial Officer

Corporate Social Responsibility

The Bank has set up a Corporate Responsibilities (CR) Committee to implement
CR programs in India in accordance with ANZ group CR policy. The Bank’s
CR Charter document sets out the following priorities for CR program:

e  Sustainable Development

e  Diversity & Inclusion

e  Financial Inclusion & Capability

With reference to the RBI circular DBOD.No.Dir.BC.50/13.01.01/2005-06 dated
21 December 2005, amount to be spent by the Bank for the year ended 31
March 2015 on donations is limited to 5,054 (3'000s) (based on 1% of published
profits for the previous year ended 31 March 2014 with specific exclusions).
Amount spent under CR programs during the year and included under “Other
expenses” in Schedule 16 is 2,018 (3'000s) in accordance with the requirements
stipulated in the aforesaid RBI circular.

Previous year

The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2015 have been audited
by the statutory auditors, B S R & Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants. The
financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2014 had been audited by
another firm of chartered accountants.

Previous period figures

Previous period’s figures have been regrouped / reclassified to confirm to the
current year presentation.

For B S R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration

No. 116231W/W-100024

Sd/- Sd/-
Sanjeev Bajaj Ashwin Suvarna
Chief Executive Officer Partner

Membership No. 109503

Place: Mumbai
Date: 22 June 2015

BASEL lll: PILLAR 3 DISCLOSURES AS AT 31 MARCH 2015

Background

Australia and New Zealand Banking Group Limited - Mumbai Branch (‘ANZ
India’ or ‘the Bank’) is a branch of Australia and New Zealand Banking Group
Limited (‘ANZ’), which is incorporated in Australia with Limited Liability.

In October 2010, ANZ received the final approval from the Reserve Bank of
India (‘RBI’) to open a branch in Mumbai to carry out banking business. The
Bank commenced its banking business in India from 2 June, 2011. The Bank
has only one branch in India as on 31 March 2015.

Disclosures made hereunder are in accordance with Basel Il Capital
Regulations - Market Discipline (Pillar 3).

Key Management Committees, Functions and Frameworks
India Executive Commiittee (‘India EXCO’)

India EXCO is the apex committee of the Bank and has the authority to exercise
all of the powers and discretions of the Board at the country level. India EXCO
takes ownership of the Bank’s business in India and fulfils the regulatory
responsibility of conducting periodic reviews/ approvals as specified by RBI
from time to time. The committee is chaired by Chief Executive Officer India.
India EXCO is an in-country committee.

Key responsibilities of the India EXCO are:

e Approving all key business policies.

e Investigating and reviewing policy breaches for credit, operational and
market risks; and approving remediation actions.

e Monitoring governance and compliance with Credit, Operational and
Market risk management policies, procedures and systems (including
risk models) in India and instigating any necessary corrective actions to
address deviations.

e Undertaking activities to support the development of new products to be
introduced by the Bank.

India Assets and Liabilities Committee (‘India ALCO’)

India ALCO is a sub-committee of the International and Institutional Banking
ALCO ('l&IB ALCO’) and is responsible for the oversight and strategic
management of the India Balance Sheet, liquidity and funding positions and
capital management activities.

India ALCO’s mandate for managing Balance Sheet, liquidity and funding and
capital activities include, but are not limited to:

e  Liquidity and funding.

e  Capital (book, regulatory and economic).

e Non-traded Interest Rate Risk, including the investment of capital and
other non-interest bearing products.

e Balance sheet structure including capital and revenue flows, but excluding
traded foreign exchange exposures.

e Approval and oversight of traded market risk.

e  Policy, control and compliance activities for all balance sheet, liquidity
and funding and capital related risks.

e  Recommendations / noting to I&IB ALCO for any key local decision taken
at the ALCO.

Risk Management Committee (‘India RMC’)

India RMC is a sub-committee of regional RMC and acts as a forum to
ensure adequate awareness and debate of all significant risk issues that the
Bank faces. India RMC has management oversight and presides over credit,
operational and market risk within the Bank.

Key responsibilities of the India RMC are:

e Acting as the ultimate point of escalation against agreed Risk/Return
standards across division.

e Overseeing Country/Business Level Credit, Operational and Market Risk
strategies.

e Recommending country risk strategies.

e Identifying actions and mandating requirements into the resolution of
country risk issues.

e Reviewing and approving (for in-country adoption of regionally / globally
approved products) country new and amended products/programs, and
ensuring that they meet Group Policy parameters.

e  Consider key activities across the Bank and their risk implications, and
action accordingly.

Regulatory Framework

The Bank operates as a scheduled commercial bank and is required to maintain
capital ratios at par with locally incorporated banks.

Capital Adequacy requirements are outlined in the following circulars:

e Master Circular — Prudential Guidelines on Capital Adequacy and Market
Discipline — New Capital Adequacy Framework (‘NCAF’) commonly
referred as Basel Il guidelines.

e Master Circular - Basel lll Capital Regulations.

As per Basel Il guidelines, currently banks should adopt Standardised
Approach (SA) for credit risk, Basic Indicator Approach (BIA) for operational risk
and Standardised Duration Approach (SDA) for computing capital requirement
for market risks.

Basel Il guidelines are structured around three ‘Pillars’ which are outlined
below:

e  Pillar 1 sets out minimum regulatory capital requirements.

e  Pillar 2 sets out key principles for supervisory review of Bank’s risk
management framework and its capital adequacy.

e Pillar 3 aims to encourage market discipline by developing set of disclosure
requirements by banks that allow market participants to assess key pieces
of information on the scope of application, capital, risk exposures, risk
assessment processes and hence the capital adequacy of the bank.
Further, providing disclosures that are based on a common framework
is an effective means of informing the market about exposure to those
risks and provides a consistent and comprehensive disclosure framework
that enhances comparability.

Basel Il introduced a much stricter definition of capital. The predominant
form of Tier 1 capital will be Common Equity, since it is critical that banks’ risk
exposures are backed by high quality capital base. Further, Basel Il introduced
Capital Conservation Buffer (CCB) and Countercyclical buffer with a view to
ensure that banks maintain a cushion of capital that can be used to absorb
losses during periods of financial and economic stress and to increase capital
requirements in good times and decrease the same in bad times.

DF -1 Scope of Application

In terms of RBI circular dated 12 December, 2006 on Financial Regulation of
Systemically Important NBFCs and banks’ Relationship with them, NBFCs
promoted by the parent/ group of a foreign bank having presence in India, which
is a subsidiary of the foreign bank’s parent / group or where the parent / group
is having management control would be treated as part of that foreign bank’s
operations in India and brought under the ambit of consolidated supervision.
As at 31 March 2015 no such group owned NBFC is in operations in India,
accordingly framework for consolidated supervision does not apply to the Bank.

The Bank does not have any subsidiaries in India and consequently not required
to prepare Consolidated Financial Statements. The Bank does not have any
interest in insurance entities.

DF -2 Capital Adequacy

The Bank aims to hold sufficient capital to meet the minimum regulatory
requirements at all times. The Bank’s capital management strategy is two fold:

o  To satisfy the Basel Ill Regulatory Capital requirements set out by RBI in
the Master Circular and

e  Tominimise the possibility of the Bank’s capital falling below the minimum
regulatory requirement by maintaining a capital buffer (in excess of the
Basel Ill minimum requirements) sufficient to cover Pillar 2 risks and the
capital impact of a moderate (1 in 7 years) or a severe (1 in 25 years)
stress scenario over a 1 year horizon.

The Bank's capital management is mainly guided by current capital position,
current and future business needs, regulatory environment and strategic
business planning. The Bank continuously focuses on effective management
of risk and corresponding capital to support the risk. India ALCO and India
EXCO emphasises on the growth opportunities supported by cost effective
capital.

As at 31 March 2015 CRAR was 21.85% and Common Equity Tier | ratio was
21.42% as per BASEL Ill norms. The Bank is adequately capitalised presently.
Summary of the Bank'’s capital requirement for credit, market and operational
risk and CRAR as at 31 March 2015 is presented below.

(Amount in ¥'000)

Minimum Regqulatory Capital Requirements
Capital requirements for Credit risk (a) 4,060,565
Portfolios subject to standardised approach 4,060,565
Securitisation exposures. -
Capital requirements for Market risk (b) 700,855
Standardised duration approach
- Interest rate risk 480,355
- Foreign exchange risk (including gold) 220,500
- Equity risk -
Capital requirements for Operational risk (c) 308,804
Basic indicator approach 308,804
Total Minimum Regulatory Capital (a+b+c) 5,070,224
Risk Weighted Assets and Contingents
Credit Risk 45,117,391
Market Risk 7,787,280
Operational Risk 3,431,159
Capital Ratios
CET 1 Capital 21.42%
Tier | Capital 21.42%
Total Capital 21.85%
6. DF -3 Credit Risk: General Disclosures for all Bank
Structure and organisation of credit risk management
India RMC is responsible for all aspects of risk management, including credit
risk. It approves the credit exposure/ concentration limits, risk management
policy (involving risk identification, risk measurement/ grading, risk mitigation
and control), credit risk management structure, credit pricing policy, etc. in
accordance with extant regulatory guidelines. India EXCO is apprised of key
risks affecting the business. It ensures country’s risk profile remains within the
agreed group risk appetite.
The Bank takes credit risk within a well defined framework that lays out the
fundamental principles and guidelines for its management. Primary objective is
management of risk within risk appetite and within regulator defined prudential
limits. This framework has four main components:
o  Credit principles.
e  Credit policies.
e Line of Business/ Segment Specific Procedures.
e  Organisation and People.
o Key aspects of the Bank’s Credit Risk Management Policy are
o Analysis of customer risk.
e  Approval of limits and transactions.
e  Managing and monitoring customers.
e  Working out problem loans.
Credit is extended on the basis of the Bank’s credit risk assessment and credit
approval requirements and is not subject to any influences external to these
requirements. All legal entities, with which the Bank has or is considering
having, a credit relationship, is assigned a credit rating reflecting the probability
of default and each facility is assigned a security indicator reflecting the ‘loss
given default’. Each country to which the Bank has or is considering having,
a credit exposure, is assigned a country rating reflecting the risk of economic
or political events detrimentally impacting a country’s willingness or capacity
to secure foreign exchange to service its external debt obligations.
Risk grade assignment and risk grade reviews are subject to approval by
the appropriate independent risk representative. Each assigned risk grade
is reviewed at an interval (never greater than 1 year) and whenever new
material information relating to the customer or facility is obtained or becomes
known. The Bank has an effective credit risk management system and clearly
documented credit delegations which define levels of authority for credit
approval. The quality of all credit relationships is monitored to provide for timely
identification of problem credits and prompt application of remedial actions.
Problem credits are managed to minimise losses, maximise recoveries and
preserve the Bank’s reputation, with attention to measurement of extent of
impairment, exposure and security cover, provisioning, remediation, workout
& losses. A specialist remediation team with work out skills will be applied to
the management of all problem credits.
Collateral is a means of mitigating the risk involved in providing credit facilities
and will be taken where obtainable and necessary to meet risk appetite
requirements. Main types of collateral accepted are property, plant & machinery,
current assets, cash and stand-by letters of credit. Reliance on collateral is
not a substitute for appropriate credit assessment of a customer or be used to
compensate for inadequate understanding of the risks. Collateral arrangements
for each facility are reviewed annually to confirm the fair value of collateral and
to ensure there is no impediment to realisation. The fair value of collateral will
be its realisable value net of realisation costs.
6.1 Total gross credit risk exposures as at 31 March 2015
(Amount in ¥°000)
Fund Based
Claims on Banks 4,746,302
Investments (HTM) -
Loans and Advances 22,583,709
Other Assets and Fixed Assets 8,685,559
Non Fund Based
Non Market Related Off Balance sheet items
(Contingent Credits and Exposures) 11,596,898
Market Related (Foreign Exchange (Fx) and
Derivative contracts) 15,721,190

Notes:

Non Fund Based credit risk exposure has been computed as under:

6.2

6.3

In case of exposures other than FX and derivative contracts, credit equivalent
is arrived at by multiplying the underlying contract or notional principal amounts
with the credit conversion factors prescribed by RBI under the Basel Il capital
framework.

In case of Foreign exchange and derivative contracts, credit equivalents are
computed using the current exposure method as prescribed by RBI.

Geographic distribution of exposures, Fund based and Non-fund based
separately

Since all the exposures provided under Para 6.1 above are domestic, the
disclosures on geographic distribution of exposures, both fund and non-fund
based has not been made.

Industry type distribution of exposures as at 31 March 2015
(Amount in ¥°000)

Industry Name Fund Based | Non Fund Based
Food Processing 1,279,986 1,364,510
Beverages (excluding Tea & Coffee)

and Tobacco 439,242 3,650
Textiles 43,750 127,708
Petroleum (non-infra), Coal Products

(non-mining) and Nuclear Fuels 937,500 1,960,348
Chemicals and Chemical Products

(Dyes, Paints, etc.) 4,473,033 607,851
Rubber, Plastic and their Products 622,946 -
Class & Glassware 748,765 -
Basic Metal and Metal Products 3,265,640 107,258
All Engineering 1,385,927 2,540,813
Vehicles, Vehicle Parts and Transport

Equipments 204,595 1,583,003
Gems & Jewellery 80,622 -
Infrastructure 149,243 -
Other Industries 1,731,361 -
Residuary Other Advances 7,221,099 3,803,939
Total Loans & Advances 22,583,709 12,099,080
Claims on Banks 4,746,302 7,653,264
Investments (HTM) - -
Other Assets and Fixed Assets 8,685,559 -
Total Exposure 36,015,570 19,752,344

Notes:

Fund Based Exposure comprises of Loans & Advances, Claims on Banks and
Investment in HTM & Other Assets (including fixed Assets).

Non Fund Based Exposure comprises of Non Market Related Off-Balance sheet
items (Contingent Credits and Exposures) and is reported in terms of notionals.

6.4 Residual contractual maturity breakdown of assets as at 31 March 2015

(Amount in ¥'000)

Cash and Balances with Investments | Advances | Fixed Assets | Other Assets | Total Assets
Bank balances | Banks and money at
with RBI call and short notice
Day 1 2,463,678 1,196,302 11,868,406 57,788 - 27,327 15,613,501
2to 7 days 149,262 500,000 802,286 1,476,880 - 19,977 2,948,405
8 to 14 days 71,753 500,000 385,673 2,787,004 - 11,641 3,756,071
15 to 28 days 97,179 - 522,335 3,161,975 - 141,920 3,923,409
29days and upto 3 months 587,520 2,550,000 3,157,919 9,977,304 - 61,176 16,333,919
Over 3 months and upto 6 months 108,725 - 584,398 2,886,859 - 138,864 3,718,846
Over 6 months and upto 1 year 221,620 - 1,190,172 399,197 - 5,629,896 7,440,885
Over 1 year and upto 3 years 51,558 - 277,127 1,836,702 - 543,405 2,708,792
Over 3 years and upto 5 years 1 - 6 - - 339,160 339,167
Over 5 years 67 - 359 - 253,667 1,638,343 1,792,436
Total 3,751,363 4,746,302 | 18,788,681 22,583,709 253,667 8,451,709 58,575,431
6.5 Details of Non-Performing Assets (NPAs) - Gross and Net 6.8 Movement of provisions for NPAs (Amount in ¥'000)
(Amount in ¥'000) For the year ended 31 Mar 2015
As at 31 Mar 2015 Opening balance 185,290
Substandard - ||| Provisions made during the period -
Doubtful 1 - || Write-off 185,290
Doubtful 2 - ||| Write-back of excess provisions -
Doubtful 3 - ||| Closing balance -
Loss - || Note: YTD movement has been reported above
Gross NPAs ~116.9 Amount of Non-Performing Investments
Provisions for NPAs - There are no non-performing investments as at 31 March 2015.
Net NPAs -

6.6 NPA Ratios

(Amount in ¥'000)

As at 31 Mar 2015

Gross NPAs to gross advances -

Net NPAs to net advances -

6.7 Movement of NPAs (Gross)

(Amount in ¥000)

For the year ended 31 Mar 2015

Opening balance 185,290
Additions -
Reductions 185,290

Closing balance -

Note: YTD movement has been reported above

6.10 Amount of provisions held for Non-Performing Investments

6.11 Movement of provisions for depreciation on Investments

There are no provisions held for non-performing investments as at 31 March
2015 as there are no non performing investments.

(Amount in ¥'000)

For the year ended
31 Mar 2015
Opening balance 11
Provisions made during the period 925
Write-off -
Write-back of excess provisions -
Closing balance 1,036

Note: YTD movement has been reported above
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DF-4 Credit Risk: Disclosures for Portfolios Subject to the Standardised Approach

The Bank uses short term / long term issuer rating instruments of the accredited rating agencies viz. Credit Rating Information Services of India Limited, ICRA
Limited, India Ratings and Research Private Limited (India Ratings), Credit Analysis and Research Limited, SME Rating Agency of India Limited and Brickworks
Ratings India Pvt Limited to assign risk weights as per RBI guidelines. For Non resident corporate and foreign banks ratings issued by the international rating
agencies like Standard and Poor’s and Moody’s are used for assigning risk weights.

For assets having a contractual maturity of more than a year long term credit ratings assigned by the above mentioned rating agencies are used.

Below attached is the summary as at 31 March 2015

(Amount in ¥'000)

Gross Credit | Credit Risk Net Exposure Credit Risk weight bucket summary Deduction

Nature Of exposure S . .

Exposure Mitigation | (Before Provision) <100% 100% >100% from Capital
Fund Based
Claims on Banks 4,746,302 - 4,746,302 4,746,302 - - -
Investments (HTM) - - - - - - -
Loans and Advances 22,583,709 - 22,583,709 3,532,779 11,677,714 7,373,216 -
Other Assets and Fixed Assets 8,685,557 - 8,685,557 7,208,226 564,513 912,818 -
Non Fund Based
Non Market Related Off Balance sheetitems 41 56 ggg - 11596,898| 5508534  1307,886| 4,690,478 -
(Contingent Credits and Exposures)
Market Related (Foreign Exchange (FX)and | 45 754 199 - 15,721,190 12,526,145 2,448,565 746,480 -
derivative contracts)
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Credit Risk Mitigation: Disclosures for Standardised Approaches

RBI Basel Ill guidelines allow following credit risk mitigants to be recognized

for regulatory capital purposes under the comprehensive approach.

e Eligible financial collateral which included cash (deposited with the Bank),
gold, securities issued by Central and State governments, Kisan Vikas
Patra, National Savings Certificate, life insurance policies, certain debt
securities rated by a recognised credit rating agencies, mutual fund units.

e On balance sheet netting, which is confined to loans and advances and
deposits where banks have legally enforceable netting arrangements,
involving specific lien with proof of documentation.

e  Guarantees where these are direct, explicit, irrevocable and unconditional.
Further, the eligible guarantors would comprise:
= Sovereigns, sovereign entities stipulated as per Basel Il guidelines,

banks and primary dealers with a lower risk weight than the
counterparty.
n  other entities rated AA (-) or better.

These credit risk mitigation techniques are subject to specific conditions given

in Basel Il guidelines.

Main types of collateral accepted by the bank are property, plant & machinery,

current assets, cash and stand-by letters of credit. Collateral arrangements for

each facility are reviewed annually to confirm the fair value of collateral and
to ensure there is no impediment to realisation. The fair value of collateral will
be its realizable value net of realisation costs.

Credit Risk Mitigation details as at 31 March 2015 are as below:

(Amount in ¥000)

Exposure covered by eligible financial collateral after
application of haircuts

NIL

Exposure covered by guarantees

NIL

9.

10.

Securitisation Exposures: Disclosure for Standardised Approach

The Bank has not securitised any asset for the year under review hence no
disclosures have been made.

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market parameters. Bank’s
earnings are exposed to changes in interest rates, foreign currency exchange
rates or fluctuations in bond prices. Market risk arises when changes in market
rates, prices and volatilities lead to a decline in the value of assets and liabilities,
including off-balance sheet positions viz financial derivatives. Market risk is
generated through both trading and banking book activities.

The Bank conducts trading operations in interest rates, foreign exchange and
fixed-income securities.

To facilitate the management, measurement and reporting of market risk, the
Bank has classified market risk into two broad categories:
e  Traded market risk:

This is the risk of loss from changes in the value of financial instruments

due to movements in price factors for both physical and derivative trading

positions. Trading positions arise from transactions where the bank acts as

principal with customers, financial exchanges or inter-bank counterparties.
o  Non-traded market risk (or balance sheet risk):

This comprises management of interest rate risk on banking book and

liquidity risk.
The Bank has a detailed market risk management and control framework to
support its trading and balance sheet activities. This framework incorporates
a risk measurement approach, as outlined below, to quantify the magnitude
of market risk within trading and balance sheet portfolios. The framework is
supported by a comprehensive limit and policy framework to control the amount
of risk that the Group is willing to accept. Market risk limits are allocated at
various levels and are monitored and reported by Market Risk on a daily
basis. While Value at Risk (VaR) and Stress limits provide a good overview
of the consolidated risk on the Traded and Non-traded portfolios, the Detailed
Control Limits (DCL) framework allocates limits to manage and control the risk
of individual asset classes, risk factors and consolidated/trader-wise loss limits
(to monitor and manage the performance of the trading portfolio).

Measurement of market risk

Akey measure of market risk is Value at Risk (VaR). VaR is a statistical estimate
of the potential loss which could occur due to a change in market risk factors
for a given holding period and confidence interval.

The Bank measures VaR ata 99% confidence interval. Group’s standard VaR
approach, for both Traded as well as Non-traded risk, is historical simulation
method. This method uses actual historical observations of changes in market
rates, prices and volatilities over the previous 500 business days historical
period (VaR window) to model P&L outcomes. Both Traded and Non-traded
VaR are calculated, monitored and reported using a one-day (1D) holding
period.

It should be noted that because VaR is driven by actual historical observations,
it is not an estimate of the maximum loss that the Bank could experience
from an extreme market event. As a result of this limitation, the Bank utilises
a number of other risk measures (e.g. stress testing) and risk sensitivity limits
to measure and manage market risk.

Stress Testing

Bank undertakes a wide range of stress tests to the individual trading portfolios.
Bank has adopted a local Stress Testing policy as mandated by RBI vide circular

DBOD.BP.BC.No. 75/21.04.103/2013-14, dated 02 Dec 2013, titled “Guidelines
on Stress Testing”. Stress tests as per baseline scenarios prescribed by RBI
are conducted at half-yearly intervals (September and March). Results of this
periodic stress testing exercise are presented to RMC for advising remedial
actions, if any. Apart from this, standard stress tests, as per ANZ Group
guidelines, are applied daily and measure the potential loss impact arising from
applying the largest market movements during the previous seven years over
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specific holding periods. The worst stress losses observed during the month
are reported to the RMC on a monthly basis.

VaR and stress tests are also supplemented by cumulative loss limits (CLL)
and detailed control limits (DCL). Cumulative loss limits ensure that in the event
of continued losses from a trading activity, the trading activity is stopped and
senior management reviews before trading is resumed. Where necessary,
detailed control limits such as risk-sensitivity or position limits are also in place
to ensure appropriate control is exercised over a specific risk or product.

Back-Testing

Back testing involves the comparison of calculated VaR exposures with actual
profit and loss data to identify the frequency of instances when trading losses
exceed the calculated VaR. The Bank uses actual and hypothetical profit
and loss data for performing Back Testing. Back Testing is conducted daily
and outliers are analysed to understand if the issues are the result of trading
decisions, systemic changes in market conditions or issues related to the VaR
model i.e. historical data or model calibration.

Capital requirement for Market Risk is provided in section 5 above.
Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Bank is unable to meet its payment obligations
as they fall due across a wide range of operating circumstances, including
repaying depositors or maturing debt, or that the Bank has insufficient capacity
to fund increases in assets. The timing mismatch of cash flows and the related
liquidity risk is inherent in all banking operations and is recognized and closely
monitored by the Bank.

The Bank maintains a portfolio of liquid assets to manage potential stresses in
funding sources. The minimum level of liquidity portfolio assets to hold is based
on a range of the Bank specific and general market liquidity stress scenarios
such that potential cash flow obligations can be met over the short to medium
term.

The Bank's liquidity and funding risks are governed by a set of principles which
have been fixed by the Group. The core objective of the overall framework is
to ensure that the Bank has sufficient liquidity to meet obligations as they fall
due, without incurring unacceptable losses.

Key principles of the Bank’s approach to liquidity risk management include:

e Maintaining the ability to meet all payment obligations in the immediate
(intraday/overnight) term.

e  Ensuring that the Bank has the ability to meet ‘survival horizons’ under
a range of Bank specific and general market liquidity stress scenarios to
meet cash flow obligations over a short to medium term horizon.

e  Maintaining strength in the Bank’s balance sheet structure to ensure long
term resilience in the liquidity and funding risk profile.

e Limiting the potential earnings at risk implications associated with
unexpected increases in funding costs or the liquidation of assets under
stress.

e  Preparation of daily liquidity reports and scenario analyses, quantifying
the Bank's positions.

e  Targeting a diversified funding base, avoiding undue concentrations by
investor type, maturity, market source and currency.

e  Holding a portfolio of high quality liquid assets to protect against adverse
funding conditions and to support day-to-day operations.

e  Establishing detailed contingency plan to cover liquidity crisis events.

e Ensuring the liquidity risk management framework is compatible with local
regulatory requirements.

Management of liquidity and funding risks are locally overseen by India ALCO.
Scenario modeling

A key component of the Group’s liquidity management framework is scenario
modeling. The Bank mainly assesses liquidity under different scenarios,
including the ‘going-concern’ and ‘name-crisis’. Liquidity scenario modeling
stresses cash flow projections against multiple ‘survival horizons’ over which
the Bank is required to remain cash flow positive.

Operational Risk

The Bank understands and manages operational risk efficiently and effectively,
allocating appropriate capital to cover expected and unexpected losses to
protect depositors, customers and shareholders. Further, ANZ Group has
introduced a revised Operational Risk Measurement and Management
Framework (ORMMF), including new policies and procedures, which will
enable globally consistent and comparable management of operational risk.
The framework sets out the minimum requirements to identify, assess, measure,
monitor, control and manage operational risk. ANZ India has implemented this
operational risk framework since 30-June-2013.

An effective and embedded governance structure is also built for managing

operational risk in line with the Bank’s values, culture, strategy and appetite.

The oversight of operational risk management is conducted via three clearly

articulated layers of risk management — Three lines of defence:

e  The area where the risk originates is responsible for managing the risk.
This is defined as ‘the First Line of Defence’.

e Toensure appropriate challenge and oversight, there is a dedicated and

independent operational risk management function. This is ‘the Second
Line of Defence’.
The first and second lines of defence have defined roles, responsibilities
and escalation paths to support effective two way communication
and management of operational risk. There are also on-going review
mechanisms in place to ensure the framework continues to meet
organisational needs and regulatory requirements.

e  ‘The Third Line of Defence’ has an independent oversight role within the
governance structure and is performed by Internal Audit. Internal Audit
provides independent and objective assurance to management that the
first and second lines of defence are functioning as intended.

The Bank periodically identifies and assesses its exposure to material
operational risk within all existing and new products, processes, projects
and systems, and assesses the key controls in place to manage these risks.

Page 4 Continued......
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perform the corresponding obligation in a bilateral contract at settlement

Amounts
‘ ’ 0 date. Basel lll common disclosure template to be used during the transition of regulatory adjustments (i.e. from April 1, 2013 Basel lll Subject to
FJu “ ' e Market replacement risk (pre-settlement risk), which is the risk that a | | to December 31, 2017) Amounts | Pre-Basel Il
counterparty will default during the life of a derivative contract and that a Treatment
AUSTRALIA AND NEW ZEALAND loss will be incurred in covering the position. " - . -
Additional Tier 1 capital: regulatory adjustments
BANKING GROUP LIMITED - Counterparty credit risk requires a different method to calculate exposure 37 | tments | Additional Tier 1 inst "
MUMBAI BRANCH at default because actual and potential market movements impact Bank's nvestments in own itional Tier 1 instruments . .
exposure or replacement cost. 38 Reciprocal cross-holdings in Additional Tier 1 instruments - -
(Incorporated in Australia with limited liability) Counterparty credit risk governance 39 | Investments in the capital of banking, financial and insurance entities that are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation,
- N N s Y . . . net of eligible short positions, where the bank does not own more than 10% of the issued common share capital of the - -
Compliance to the operational risk measurement and management framework Bank’s counterparty credit risk management is governed by its credit ’ o
. . . ) - . s o L . Lo ; entity (amount above 10% threshold)
is monitored using one or more of the following mechanisms, but is not limited principles, policies and procedures. The Group Risk function is responsible
to: for determining the counterparty credit risk exposure methodology applied to | |40 | Significant investments in the capital of banking, financial and insurance entities that are outside the scope of regulatory } ;
o Halfyearly Risk Certification market instruments, in the framework for counterparty credit limit management, consolidation (net of eligible short positions)10
e  Periodic Control Testing measurement and reporting. 41 National specific regulatory adjustments (41a+41b) - -
o Internal Audit Reviews Eollémefpafty credit limits are approved by the appropriate credit delegation | | 41a | of which: Investments in the Additional Tier 1 capital of unconsolidated insurance subsidiaries - -
e Periodic External Reviews olaers. 41b | of which: Shortfall in the Additional Tier 1 capital of majority owned financial entities which have not been consolidated with ) )
e  Compliance Monitoring Counterparty credit risk measurement and reporting the bank
The Bank uses the Basic Indicator Approach to estimated Operational RWAs. The approach to measure counterparty credit risk exposure is based on internal | | 42 Regulatory adjustments applied to Additional Tier 1 due to insufficient Tier 2 to cover deductions - -
At 31 March 2015, Operational RWAs were ¥ 3,431,159 (‘000). model. This is referred to as Counterparty Credit Risk Engine (CCRE). 43 | Total regulatory adjustments to Additional Tier 1 capital _ _
13. Interest Rate Risk in the Banking Book (IRRBB) CCRE uses potential future exposure (PFE) Monte Carlo based approach to . . . - _
The obiective of balance sheet interest rate risk management is to secure assess possible exposure movements for certain derivative products and the 44 Additional Tier 1 capital (AT1)
) h ) ; 9 Bank uses these estimates in internal Economic Capital calculations. 44a | Additional Tier 1 capital reckoned for capital adequacy11 - -
stable and optimal net interest income over both the short (next 12 months)
and long term. Non-traded interest rate risk relates to the potential adverse CCRE calculations recognise that prices may change over the remaining | | 45 Tier 1 capital (T1 = CET1 + Admissible AT1) (29 + 44a) 12,064,959 -
impact of changes in market interest rates on the Bank’s future net interest perioq to maturity, and that risk decreases as the contract’s remaining term to Tier 2 ital: i .
income. This risk arises from two principal sources: mismatches between the maturity decreases. |'er c?plta . |nst|?ur'nentls an‘f' provisions
re-pricing dates of interest bearing assets and liabilities, and the investment CCRE is also used by credit officers to establish credit limits on an uncommitted 46 | Directly issued qualifying Tier 2 instruments plus related stock surplus - -
of capital and other non-interest bearing liabilities in interest bearing assets. and unadvised basis, to ensure the potential volatility of the transaction valueis | | 47 | Directly issued capital instruments subject to phase out from Tier 2 - -
Interest rate risk on the Banking Book is measured and monitored by using recognised. Counterparty credit risk exposure is calculated daily and excesses | [ 43 [ Tigr 2 instruments (and CET1 and AT1 instruments not included in
VaR (Value atRisk), EaR (Earnings at Risk) and MVE (Market Value of Equity). above approved limits are reported to account controllers and risk officers for rows 5 or 34) issued by subsidiaries and held by third parties (amount allowed in group Tier 2) ) )
VaR is an estimate of the impact of interest rate changes on the banking book’s action. 29 F which: inst ts i d by subsidiari biect to ph ¢
market value, expressed to a 99.0% level of statistical confidence and using . . of which- Instruments Issued by Subsidiaries subject to phase ou . .
- ’ Credit Value Adjustment (CVA) — -
a 1 day holding period. . ) ) . 50 Provisions (includes Investment Reserve) 241,946 -
. ) . ANZ uses a CVA model to adjust fair value to take into account the impact of - - .
The Bank also uses 'Earnlngs at Rlsk (lEaR) as an estimate of the amount of counterparty credit quality. The methodology calculates the present value of 51 Tier 2 capital before regulatory adjustments - -
th? next ;i Tths income that is at risk frorp ||ntert|estf rate njovltame?ts over expected losses over the life of the financial instrument as a function of PD, || 52 | Investments in own Tier 2 instruments B B
a 1 month holding period, expressed to a 97.5% level of statistical confidence. LGD, expected credit risk exposure and an asset correlation factor. - —
It is calculated by applying a statistically derived interest rate shock to static moat o | ) A 53 | Reciprocal cross-holdings in Tier 2 instruments - -
re-pricing gaps over the first 12 months. mpaired derivatives are also subject (o a CVA. 54 | Investments in the capital of banking, financial and insurance entities that are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation,
Impacts on earnings for upward and downward rate shocks of 200 bps broken Wrong way risk net of eligible short positions, where the bank does not own more than 10% of the issued common share capital of the - -
down by currency are: Bank’s management of counterparty credit risk also considers the possibility entity (amount above the 10% threshold)
As at 31 March 2015: of wrong way risk, which emerges when PD is adversely correlated with || 55 Significant investments13 in the capital banking, financial and insurance entities that are outside the scope of regulatory : }
(Amount in ¥ ‘000) counterparty credit risk exposures. Bank’s credit policies and independent consolidation (net of eligible short positions)
Currency Interest Rate Risk Shocks transaction evaluation by Credit Risk are central to managing wrong way risk. | | 55 National specific regulatory adjustments (56a+56b) R R
200bps up | 200bps down Counterparty Credit Risk in FX and Derivatives Amountin 2000 56a | of which: Investments in the Tier 2 capital of unconsolidated subsidiaries - -
mount in - - - : — 3 . " - ; :
Rupees 6,393 (5,571) ( ) 56b | of which: Shortfall in the Tier 2 capital of majority owned financial entities which have not been consolidated with the bank - -
As at . N .
usD 176 (181) 31 Mar 2015 57 Total regulatory adjustments to Tier 2 capital -
Change in Market Value of Equity (MVE) due to interest rate movements directly | | Gross positive fair value of contracts 4,959,355 ||| 98 | Tier 2 capital (T2) 241,946 -
impacts capital requirements. Bank uses Duration Gap approach to measure the Netting benefits _||| 58a | Tier 2 capital reckoned for capital adequacy14 241,946 R
impact on Market Value of Equity (MVE) for upward and downward rate shocks. This 9 580 |E Additional Tier 1 ital reckoned as Tier 2 ital
measures the potential change in MVE of the Bank for a 200 bps change in interest || Netted current credit exposure 4,959,355 xcess itional Tier 1 capital reckoned as Tier 2 capita . .
rates. The change in MVE due to 200 bps change in interest rate is: Collateral held (including type e.g. cash, 58c | Total Tier 2 capital admissible for capital adequacy (58a + 58b) 241,946 -
Change in MVE due to 200 bps change in interest rate | (Amount in T ‘000) ||| government securities etc.) 1|1 59 | Total capital (TC = T1 + Admissible T2) (45 + 58c) 12,306,905 -
31 March 2015 268,919 || | Net derivatives credit exposure 4,959,355 ||| 60 | Total risk weighted assets (60a + 60b + 60c) 56,335,830 -
14. Counterparty Credit Risk Potential future exposure 10,761,835 ||| 60a | of which: total credit risk weighted assets 45,117,391 -
Counterparty credit risk in derivative transactions arises from the risk of || Measures for exposure at default, 60b | of which: total market risk weighted assets 7,787,280 -
tcr:)unterpztarty d:fgult bef;lretsefttllt:_?ent datte ofdtr;etderivati\t/e cton:racts andt or exposure amount, under CEM 15,721,190 |1 60c | of which: total operational risk weighted assets 3,431,159 -
e counterparty is unable to fulfill present and future contractual paymen . . o _ - -
obligations. The amount at risk may change over time as a function of the The notional value of credit derivative hedges Capital ratios and buffers
underlying market parameters up to the positive value of the contract in favor || Distribution of current credit exposure by 61 | Common Equity Tier 1 (as a percentage of risk weighted assets) 21.42% -
of ANZ India. types of credit exposure - - -
o . ) o 62 | Tier 1 (as a percentage of risk weighted assets) 21.42% -
Counterparty credit risk is present in market instruments (derivatives and || - Interest Rate contracts 8,430,323 - - -
e 63 Total capital (as a percentage of risk weighted assets) 21.85% -
forward contracts), and comprises:
K ; ) . - Fx contracts 6,733,076 — — - — -
e Settlementrisk, which arises where one party makes payment or delivers - 64 Institution specific buffer requirement (minimum CET1 requirement
value in the expectation but without certainty that the counterparty will || - Fx Options 557,791 plus capital conservation plus countercyclical buffer requirements plus G-SIB buffer requirement, expressed as a - -
- - percentage of risk weighted assets)
15. Basel lll common disclosure template (Amountin X *000) | Fas™ [ o which: capital conservation buffer requirement _ N
Amounts 66 | of which: bank specific countercyclical buffer requirement - -
Basel lll common disclosure template to be used during the transition of regulatory adjustments (i.e. from April 1, 2013 Basel Il Subject to — P - 4 il
to December 31, 2017) Amounts Pre-Basel lll 67 | of which: G-SIB buffer requirement - -
Treatment 68 Common Equity Tier 1 available to meet buffers (as a percentage of risk weighted assets) - -
Common Equity Tier 1 capital: instruments and reserves National minima (if different from Basel Ill)
1 Directly issued qualifying common share capital plus related stock surplus (share premium) 11,311,074 - 11169 National Common Equity Tier 1 minimum ratio (if different from Basel i i
2 Retained earnings - - Il minimum)
3 Accumulated other comprehensive income (and other reserves) 993,453 -|]| 70| National Tier 1 minimum ratio (if different from Basel Il minimum) - -
4 Directly issued capital subject to phase out from CET1 (only applicable to non-joint stock companies?) - -|]|71 | National total capital minimum ratio (if different from Basel Il minimum) - -
5 Common share capital issued by subsidiaries and held by third parties (amount allowed in group CET1) - - Amounts below the thresholds for deduction (before risk weighting)
6 Common Equity Tier 1 capital before regulatory adjustments 12,304,527 -1l 72 Non-significant investments in the capital of other financial entities - -
Common Equity Tier 1 capital: regulatory adjustments 73 | Significant investments in the common stock of financial entities - -
7 Prudential valuation adjustments - -] 74 Mortgage servicing rights (net of related tax liability) - -
8 Goodwill (net of related tax liability) - -1 75 Deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences (net of related tax liability) - -
9 Intangibles (net of related tax liability) 135,373 - Applicable caps on the inclusion of provisions in Tier 2
10 | Deferred tax assets 104,195 - ||| 76 | Provisions eligible for inclusion in Tier 2 in respect of exposures subject to standardised approach (prior to application of ) )
11 Cash-flow hedge reserve - - cap)
12 | Shortfall of provisions to expected losses R _|]| 77 | Cap on inclusion of provisions in Tier 2 under standardised approach - -
13 | Securitization gain on sale R _ ||| 78 | Provisions eligible for inclusion in Tier 2 in respect of exposures
subject to internal ratings-based approach (prior to application of ca| ) )
14 | Gains and losses due to changes in own credit risk on fair valued liabilities - N7 e ) for inclusion of g. — T?p ) d(p nt F|>P inas-b dp) .
15| Defined-benefit pension fund net assets _ _ ap for inclusion of provisions in Tier 2 under internal ratings-based approacl - -
16 Investments in own shares (if not already netted off paid-up capital on reported balance sheet) R R Capital instruments fubject to phascle-out arrangements (only applicable betweenMarch 31, 2017 and March 31, 2022
17 Reciprocal cross-holdings in common equity N ]| 80 Current cap on CET1 instruments subject to phase out arrangements - -
18 | Investments in the capital of banking, financial and insurance entities that are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation, 81 | Amount excluded from CET1 due to cap (excess over cap afterredemptions and maturities) - -
net of eligible short positions, where the bank does not own more than 10% of the issued share capital (amount above 10% - -1l 82 Current cap on AT1 instruments subject to phase out arrangements - -
threshold) 83 Amount excluded from AT1 due to cap (excess over cap after redemptions and maturities) - -
19 Significant investments in the common stock of banking, financial and insurance entities that are outside the scope of } i Current cap on T2 instruments subject fo phase out arrangements _ _
regulatory consolidation, net of eligible short positions (amount above 10% threshold)3 P ) P 9 - —
20 Mortgage servicing rights4 (amount above 10% threshold) _ ~1|1 85 | Amount excluded from T2 due to cap (excess over cap afterredemptions and maturities) - -
21 Deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences5 (amount above 10% threshold, net of related tax liability) - - Notes to the Template
22 | Amount exceeding the 15% threshold6 - - ||| Row No.
23 | of which: significant investments in the common stock of financial entities - - of the Particular (Amount in ¥ “000)
T o template
24 of which: mortgage servicing rights - -
; - : Deferred tax assets associated with accumulated losses -
25 of which: deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences - -
- ™ : Deferred tax assets (excluding those associated withaccumulated losses) net of Deferred tax liability 104,195
26 National specific regulatory adjustments7 (26a+26b+26c+26d) - -
; ; P : ; ; o Total as indicated in row 10 104,195
26a | of which: Investments in the equity capital of unconsolidated insurance subsidiaries - - - — — - - -
26b F which- | tments in th i ital of lidated P ial subsidiaries8 Ifinvestments in insurance subsidiaries are not deducted fully from capital and instead considered under 10% threshold
of wi I‘C : Inves mevn s in the feqw y f:apl al o ‘ur?consm a fe noh - /nﬁﬁ(:la Sfl sidiaries : : - N for deduction, the resultant increase in the capital of bank
26c | of which: Shortfall in the equity capital of majority owned financial entities which have not been consolidated with the bank9 - - of which: Increase in Common Equity Tier 1 capital
26d | of which: Unamoﬂlzed pensr?n funds expendltur(las . : _ _ : . - - of which: Increase in Additional Tier 1 capital
27 (Fj%:gizfg adjustments applied to Common Equity Tier 1 due to insufficient Additional Tier 1 and Tier 2 to cover ; ; of which: Increase in Tier 2 capital
28 Total regulatory adjustments to Common equity Tier 1 239,568 N 26b Lc;?gr:etztdmtir;ts. in the equity capital of unconsolidated non-financial subsidiaries are not deducted and hence, risk
29 | Common Equity Tier 1 capital (CET1) 12,064,959 - (i) Increase in Common Equity Tier 1 capital
Additional Tier 1 capital: instruments (i) Increase in risk weighted assets
30 | Directly issued qualifying Additional Tier 1 instruments plus related stock surplus (share premium) (31+32) - - 44a | Excess Additional Tier 1 capital not reckoned for capital adequacy (difference between Additional Tier 1 capital as
31 of which: classified as equity under applicable accounting standards (Perpetual Non-Cumulative Preference Shares) - - reported in row 44 and admissible Additional Tier 1 capital as reported in 44a)
32 of which: classified as liabilities under applicable accounting standards (Perpetual debt Instruments) - - of which: Excess Additional Tier 1 capital which is considered as Tier 2 capital under row 58b
33 | Directly issued capital instruments subject to phase out from Additional Tier 1 - - 50 Eligible Provisions included in Tier 2 capital (includes Investment Reserves) 241,946
34 | Additional Tier 1 instruments (and CET1 instruments not included in row 5) issued by subsidiaries and held by third parties : : Eligible Revaluation Reserves included in Tier 2 capital -
(amount allowed in group AT1) Total of row 50 241,946
35 | of which: instruments issued by subsidiaries subject to phase out - - 58a | Excess Tier 2 capital not reckoned for capital adequacy (difference between Tier 2 capital as reported in row 58 and
36 | Additional Tier 1 capital before regulatory adjustments - - T2 as reported in 58a)
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